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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Tenth Annual-General Meeting of the Shareholders of the<Company
will be held on Wednesday, the 30" September, 2015 at 11.30 AM. at the Registered Office of the
Company at 38-A, £xtension Street, Kaikattipudur, Avinashi-641 654 to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited —

() Financial Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31%March, 2015 and the Balance
Sheet as at that date together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon; and

{i) Consolidated Financial Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31March, 2015
and the Balance Sheet as at that date together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To deciare dividend on 6% Compulsorily Convettible Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each.

3. To-consider Mr. P .Velusamy, Director, who refires by rotation and not offefing hirﬁseiffor
re-appointment.

4. To consider Mr. P.Ashokaraman, Director, who refires by rotation and not offering himsetf for
fe-appointment.

5. To consider re-appointment of M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered ‘Accountants, Coimbatore,
the tetiring statutory auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
-General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and authorize the Board
of Directors to fix their remuneration and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification{s), the
following as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
including any amendment(s) thereto or re-enaciment(s) thereof, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Selis,
Chartered Accountants, Coimbatore, (Firm Registration No.008072S), the retiring statutory
auditors of the Company, be and are hereby re-appointed as statutory auditors of the
Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the next Annual-General Meeting for audit of the accounts for the financial year
2015-16, at a remuneration as may be mutually agreed to between the Board of Directors/
Committee of the Board of Directors and that the said statutory auditors, in addition 4o
reimbursement of actual out-of-pocket expenses to be incurred in connection with the work of
audit to be carried out by them.”

Special Business:

6. Appointment of Mr.P.Yesuthasen as an Independent Director.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act) read with the Companies
(Appoaintment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Schedule 1V to the Act {including
any -statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),




e

- Mr.P.Yesuthasen, (having DIN:B0787702), in-respact of whom the-Company -has teceived a
notice in writing-from a member proposing his candidature or the office of*Direcior, be and is
-heteby appointed as an independent Director of the ~Company, for a tem of 5 {iive) years,
-effective 30" -September, 20 19, notbeing liable to retire by rotation."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to finalize and'issue the letter of appointment to-the concerned director and to-do ali
such acts, deeds and things as may‘be necessary,.expedient and desirable for the purpoese of
giving effeet to this resoiution.”

7. Amendment-to the éapita{ clause of the Memorandum of‘i-\ssociaii;)n of the-Company.

To-consider-and if thought it to pass with or without modification{s), the following as odinary
-Jesolulion:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to Sections -4, 13 and other applicable provisions, 'if any, of the
~Companies Act, 2018 read with the Companies {incotporation) -Rufes, 2094 fncluding -any
“statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time seing in foree) and-subject to the
Recessary approval(s)tequired under all other appiicable faws and +egulations, if-any, .consent of
‘the members be and is hereby-accorded to reclassify and amend clause V of the Memorandum
of Assaciation of the‘Company as under:

“V. The authorised share -capital of the -Company is Rs 47,25,00,000 ARupees Torly
seven crotes twenty five lakhs) divided into 2,72;50,000 {Two crores seventy two iakhs
and fifty thousand) £quity Shares of Rs.40/- {Rupees 4en) each and 2,00,00,000 ~Two
crores) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- Rupees fen) each with power to increase or
reduce the capital of the Company and to reclassify or divide the shares in the-capital
Tor the time being into several.classes and to attach thereto tespeciively such
preferential, cumulative, convertible, redeemable, qualified with special rights, privileges,
-conditions or restrictions as may be determined by or in accordance with the Jprovisions
of the Articles of Association of the-Company for he time being in force, and fo vary,
modify, enlarge or abrogate any such righis, priviieges or conditions in such manner as
may be permitted by the-Companies Act, 2013 or provided by the Articles of Association
of the Company or the legislative provisions for the time being in force.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving -effect to this resolution, the Board of
Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in is
absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirable, including without limitation to settie any -question,
difficulty or doubt that may arise in this.regard.”

8. Adoption of new set of the Articles of Association of the Company in accordance wiih the
Companies Act, 2013.

To.consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification{s), the {following as special
resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to-Sections 5, 14, 371(3){a) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2643 read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, inciuding any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for-the fime being in force and subject fo
necessary approval(s) required under all other applicable laws and regulations, if any, consent of
the members be and is hereby accorded fo alter the existing Articles of Association of the
Company, by replacing it with the new-set of Articles of Association in accordance with Table ‘F’
of Schedule | of the Companies Act, 2013 and that the new set of Atticles of Association be and is
hereby approved and adopted as the Articles of Association of the Company in exclusion and in
substitution of the existing Articles of Association of the-Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT +or the purpose of giving .effectto this tesolufion, the Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to.do all such acts, deeds, matters and




things.as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem Recessaty of-gesirable, including without
limitation-to-seitie any question, difiiculty or doubt that may arise in this regard.”

. Re-appeintment of Mr.P:Sundararajan as Managing Director of the Company and payment
of ramuneration-to him.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without medification{s), the Tollowing s ord inary
fesolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pussuant 4o the provisions of seciion 486, 197,203 tead with Schedule V
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,-2013 {the Act) and the rules made
thereunder (including any statutory madification{s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being
in force) and subject to such approvals as may be necessary, consent of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of MrP:Sundararajan {DIN: 00093380)
as Managing Direclor of the -Company for a period of 5 {five) years with effect from 21%
November, 2015 and payment of +emunerafion to him as under:

(i) Salary : Rs.7,00,000/- (Rupees seven-akh only) per month pius otheremployee -benefits
ofthe-Company:
i) Benefits, Perquisites & Allowances:

«{a) LCompany maintained car with driver for official and personal use.
<(b) Free landline telephone facility at residence alongwith free mobile ‘telephone Facility.
<{c): Contribution to-Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Anruity*Fund and-Gratuity
as perthe rules of the Company.
<{d) Leave and-encashment of unavailed {eave as perthe-rules of the-Company.
-{e) ‘Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred inthe
course of business of the:Company.

ESOLVED THAT consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
pursuant to Schedule V and ali other applicable provisions of the Aect, if any, and -subject to
approvals as may be necessary, wherein in any financial year.during the aforesaid period of
appointment, the -Company* has no profits or its profits -are inadequate, then the aforesaid
remuneration shal! be the minimum remuneration payable to him.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the<Company or any-Committee thereof
be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things in its absolute discretion it may
think necessary,.expedient or desirable fo settle any question or doubtthat may arise in relation
-thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing resolutions and fo seek such approval/ consent
from the government authorities, as may be required in this regard.”

{Statement as fequired under ‘Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the above
tesolutions is attached))

(By the order of the Board)
ForS.P.Apparels Limited,

Avinashi, . ‘P.Sundararajan
28.08.2015 LChairman and Managing Director




NOTES:

1. IN TERMS OF SECTION 105 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 A MEMBER ENTITLED
TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING MAY APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT
BE A MEMBER OF THE-COMPANY.

2. Proxies in order to be effective must be lodged with the Registered Office of the Company
notless than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the special
husiness.

ltem No.6

Mr.P.Yesuthasen (having DIN:00767702) has nearly 40 years of banking experience and has rich
expertise in foreign exchange matters.

‘He holds directorship in the following Companies :
" 1. M/s. Phaeros IT India Private Limited
2. M/s. Gist Advisory Private Limited
3. M/s. Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
4. M/s. Bloom Plantation and Resort Private Lid.
5. M/s. Flourish Plantation Resort Private Ltd.

Mr. P.Yesuthasen has been an Independent Director on the Board of Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Lid
since 26" November, 2009.

The Company has received a declaration from him confimning that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and is not
disqualified from being appointed as Independent Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.

Section 149(10) of the Act provides that an Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 5
(five) years on the Board of Directors of companies on which he is appointed and is not liable to
retire by rotation pursuant to Section 149(13) read with Section 152 of the Act.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member along with the deposit of requisite
amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. P.Yesuthasen for the office of
Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors of your*Company recommends the appointment of Mr. P.Yesuthasen as an
Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years, with effect from 30th September,
2015.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, other than
Mr. P.Yesuthasen (being the appointee) is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out in ltem No.6.

Accordingly the Board recommends passing of the special resolution as set out in item no. 6 of the
Notfice.




item No.7

As per clause V of the Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the Company, the Authorised Share
Capital at present is Rs.47,25,00,000/- (Rupees forty seven crores and twenty five lakhs) divided
into 2,00,00,000 (Two crores) Equity Shares of Rs.10/~ (Rupees ten) each, 2,00,00,000 (Two
crores) -Preference Shares of Rs.10/~ (Rupees ten) each and 72,50,000 (Seventy two lakhs fifty
thousand) 6% Fully Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each.

The Board at its meeting held on.26™ June, 2015 passed resolution for conversion of 72,49,454
nos. of the said 8% Fully Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each and allotted and issued
3,45,212 equity shares of Rs.10/- each {including a premium of Rs.200/- each per share) in favour of
M/s.Euro Asia Agencies Limited, Hong Kong.

In view of this conversion, the aforesaid clause V of the MOA needs to be amended by re-
classification, comprising of Rs.47,25,00,000/- (Rupees forty seven crores and iwenty five lakhs)
divided into .2,72,50,000 (Two crores seveniy two lakhs and fifty thousand) ‘Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
{Rupees ten) each and 2,00,00,000 (Two crores) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees ten) each.

In terms of section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum of Association of the éompany
is to be amended as required above with the approval of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board recommends passing of ordinary resolution as set outin item no.7 of the Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is concerned
or interested in the said resolution.

[tem No.8

The existing Articles of Association (AOA) are based on the Companies Act, 1956 and several
regulations in the existing AOA -contain references to specific sections of the Companies Act, 1956
and some regulations in the existing ACA are no longer in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act).

Several regulations of the existing AOA of the Company require alteration or deletions. Given this
position, it is considered expedient to replace wholly the existing AOA by a new set of Ariicles.

The new AOA proposed to be subsfituted in place of the existing AOA is based on Table F’ of
Schedule | of the Act which sets out the model atticles of association for a company limited by
shares. This proposed new AOA to be adopted is aligned with the provisions of the Act.

A copy of the proposed set of new AOA of the Company would be available for inspection for the
members at the Registered Office of the Company during the office hours on any working day,
except Sundays and public holidays, between 11.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. 1ill the date of AGM.

Pursuant to Section 14 of the Act, the consent of the members by way of Special Resolution is
required for alteration of the present AOA of the Company.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in liem No. 8 of the Notice for approval of
the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are
interested or concerned in the resolufion except to the exient of their shareholding, if any, in the
Company. S .




Item No.9

Mr.P.Sundararajan (one of the promoters of the Company), was re-appointed as Managing Director
of the Company for a period of 5 years from 21.41.2010 to 20.11.2015 and payment of following
remuneration for the said period at the Annual-General Meeting held on 30.02.2010.

(i) Salary : Rs.4.00 lakhs per month.
(i) Benefits, Perquisites & Allowances :
{a)-Company maintained car with driver for official and personal use.-
(b) Telecommunication facilities at residence.
(¢) -Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund and-Gratuity
as per the rules of the Company.
{d) Leave and encashment of un availed leave as per the rules of the Company.

Considering the increased volume of businesses and responsibilities, the salary for the period from
01.04.2014 to 20.11.2015 has been increased to Rs.7.00 lakhs per month and the same has been
approved by the Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2014.

As the term of the said 5 years period of appointment expires on 20.11.2015, the Board at its
meeting held on 28™ August, 2015 considered and re-appointed Mr.P.Sundararajan as Managing
Direcior of the Company for a period of 5 years from 21.11.2015 to 20.11.2020 and payment of the
following same remuneration for the said period subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company.

(i) Salary : Rs.7,00,000/- (Rupees seven lakh only) per month plus other employee benefits
of the-Company:
(i) Benefits, Perquisites & Allowances:
(@) Company maintained car with driver for official and personal use.
(b) Free landline telephone facility at residence alongwith free mobile telephone facility.
(¢) Contribution to-Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund and Gratuity
as per the rules of the Company.
(d) Leave and encashment of unavailed leave as per the rules of the Company.
(e) Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and propetly incurred in the
course of business of the Company.

The particulars of Mr.P.Sundararajan are given hereunder:

Date of Birth

May 17, 1956

| Date of Appointment

{ November 11, 2005

| Qualifications

B.Sc.

Expertise in specific functional

| area

- Entrepreneurship and business strategy.

| - Tailor-made structural design.
1 - Garmenting fechnology.

- Infegrating skills for accomplishment.
- Affable people management.

{ - Marketing vision.

Directorships held in

companies.

other

1. Crocodile Products Private Limited
2. Poornam Enterprises Private Limited

|3 S.P.Apparels (UK) (P) Limited

Memberships / Chairmanships of
committees of other public

| companies

(including Audit, Shareholders /

Investors Grievance Commitiee)

NiL

Number of shares held in the
Company

1,19,80,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each




Inspection of Documents

The relevant documenis referred to in this Notice are open for inspaction at the Registered Office of
the Company on all working days between 11.00 AM. and5.00 P.M. till the date of the meeting.

{By the order of the Board)

For 8.P.Apparels Limited,

Avinashi, A P.Sundararajan
28.08.2015 NAZ Chairman and Managing Director
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The Members,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 10th Annual Report in respect

S.P.Apparels Limited

Directors’ Report

of the financial year ended 31 March, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The periormance of the Company as per the audited financial statements for the year ended

31% March, 2015 is as under:

{Rs. in Millions)

2
o

Particulars

STANDALONE
2014-15 2013-14

CONSOLIDATED* |
2014- 15 |

Export Sales

3718.01

3303.02

3718.01

Domestic Sales

1099.10

1182.97

1066.98

Total Sales

4817.11

4485.99

4784.99

| Other Income

7.60

11.87

7.34 |

: Total Income

4824.71

4497 .86

4792.33

| EBITDA
EBITDA %
Depreciation

| PBIT

| PBIT %

Interest,

PBT

| PBT %

Provision for Taxation

| MAT Credit entitlement

PAT (before
appropriation)

| PAT %

| EPS (Basic) (Rs.)

EPS (Diluted) (Rs.)

763.89
15.86
197.47

566.42
11.76
311.53
254.89
5.99
203.84

53.43 |

104.48

656.38
14.63
175.10

481.28
10.73
355.62
125.66

2.80 |
76.56
25.14

74.24

755.50
16.79
199.67

555.83
11.62
311.60
24423
5.40
219.49
5343

78.17
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5.75

5.64

165
4.42
4.42

1.63
4.66

4.56
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.
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(* As per requirements of the -Companies Act, 2013 consolidated figures have been furnished for
the first time to start with. Previous year figures are not available).




REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

Your Company’s performance reflects strong improvements in establishing its export market and teliable
customers who have reposed trust and conifidence on the Company and its products. Though there is no
increase in number of customers, the existing customers have increased their quantum of orders which
helped the Company to periorm better.

The Company has repored total revenue of Rs.4,824.71 million in comparison to Rs.4,497.86 million of
the previous year at an increase of 7.27 %. The EBITDA is Rs.763.89 million as against Rs.656.38 million
of the previous year reporting an increase of 16.38 %. The operational cash profit is Rs.452.36 million in
comparison to Rs.300.76 million of the previous year.

The net profit after tax is Rs.104.48 million as against Rs.74.24 million of the previous year registering an
increase of 40.73%. Thus your Company’s balance sheet as at 31* March, 2015 reflect a healthy position
with a net worth of Rs.1,332.43 million.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries has bsen prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

A statement pursuant to first proviso to Section 129(3). of the -Companies Act, 2013, in Form No. AOC-1
in respect of subsidiary companies is aitached vide Anhexure -i.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended dividend of 6% for the 72,49,454 nos. of 6% Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The increase in export sales is coniributed mainly by the existing customers who are having longstanding
relationship with the Company. The Company has its budget for export sales for the current year at
Rs.4,720 million. Excepting addition of few new customers, there would be no change in the existing
customers as the Company is confidently achieving its budgeted target with the exisling customers.

The Company’s Spinning division is performing exceptionally well and during this year it is able to supply
yarn for caplive consumption.

The Processing division is operating at 85% of its installed capacity and meeting the Company’s
requirements besides undertaking jobs from third patties.

The Retail division has performed better comparing last year and is expected to do better during current
year after a sirategic bifurcation of activities.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2014-15, the Board of the Compangl held four meetings of the Board on 25

June, 2014, 17" September, 2014, 11" December, 2014 and 5" March, 2015.




SHARE CAPITAL

The Board of the Company has converted fully the 6% -Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of
Rs.72.49 million into 3,45,212 equity shares of Rs.10/- each with the premium of Rs.200/- per share at its
meeting held on 26" June, 2015.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS.

In terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following details are fumished:
(a) Loans given to body corporates/ firms; Nil
(b) Guarantees/ securities given to body corporates/ firms: Nil
{c) Investments made in body corporates/ firms:
(i) S.P.Apparels UK (P) Lid. (WOS) - Rs.9,46,200/-(against 10,000 shares subscribed).
(i) Gayathri Sustainable Energies Private Limited- Rs.3,64,800/- (against 36480 shares acquired).
(iif) LNGS Private Lid. — Rs.42,04,000/- (against 420400 shares acquired).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company has undertaken CSR activities, inter alia, green belt development, benefit for armed
forces, promotion of rural development projects, health care, etc.

Your -Company has contributed around Rs.14.31 {akhs being 2% of the average net profits of the three
previous financial years towards the abovesaid activities. Further, the Company is in the process of
enlarging its CSR activities envisaged in Schedule VII to the Companies Act. 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the related party transactions are strictly done on amm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business of the Company. These transactions are specified with their nature and value are approved at

the meetings of the Audit Committee and Board. Particulars of the transactions are fumished in Form
AOC-2 vide Annexure-ll attached herewith.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm the following:

() In the preparation of the annual accounis, for the financial year ended 31 March,2015, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed and there are no materiai departures;

(i) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for
the year ended on that date;

(iii) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(v) The Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.




MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS )

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the-Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements refate and the date of the report and there has been no change in the nature of business.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has established a vigil mechanism for reporting of genuine concerns through the Whistle
Blower policy of the Company. Furihier, the Company believes in providing opportunity and key positions
to women professionals and encourage them by creating proper policies to tackle issues relating to safe
and proper woiking conditions for them and create and maintain a heaithy, conducive wotk environment
and free of discrimination including gender and any forim of sexual harassment.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Processing division of the Company by having rain water harvesting has managed its full
requirement of water and thus made contribution to natural resource managementi. Further, its
condensation of steam into water collection has reduced fuel consumption.

The Company has ufilized thermal energy to have conhtinuous power supply for its Processing and
Spinning divisions-during lean months which reduced consumption of genset power during the period.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
The Company is updating technologies in all its manufacturing operations. In its processing division, it

has installed automatic coal feeder in place of manual feeding which has improved efficiency of boilers
upto 80% against 58% in the previous years. In this process, the unbumt fuel is reduced. The Company

has installed compacting machine in spinning division to improve its productivity and quality of the yarn.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OQUTGO
(Rs. in millions)
2014-15 2013-14
Foreign Exchange earned through exports 3679.04 3240.30
Foreign Exchange used : 98.86 159.55

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2043, the Company has constituted a risk
management committee. At present, the Company has envisaged no principal risks or uncertainty since it
foresee sustainable development.

ANNUAL EVALUATION

As part of good governance practices, the Board evaluates its performance from time to time at is
meetings and that of its committees and individual directors.

The evaluation was broadly based on parameters such as understanding of the Company's vision,
objectives, skills, knowledge, experience, participation and attendance in Board/ Commitiee meetings.

The performance evaluation of the Chaiman and Managing Director of the Company was made by the
Independent Directors taking into account the views of all other Directors. They also assessed the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board. The
Directors expressed overall safisfaction on the evaluation process.




DIRECTORS

Mrs:S.Shantha, Direcior, resigned from the Board of the Company effective from 5M March, 2015. The
Board recorded its high appreciation for the valuable services rendered by her during the tenure of her
directorship since incorporation of the Company.

Mr.S.Chenduran was appointed as Director {Operations) on the Board of the Company for a period of 5
(five) years with effect from 1% April, 2015 and payment of remuneration fo him at the Extra-ordinary
‘General Mesting held on 30" March, 2015. -

Mr.V :Sakthivel, Independent Director on the Board and Mr.V.Senthii, who was appointed as Independent
Director on the Board on 5" March, 2015 were appointed as Independent Directors for a period of 5 (five)
years at the Exira-ordinary General Meeting held on 30" March, 2015 and they are not liable to retire by
rofation.

Mr.P.Velusamy and Mr.P.Ashokaraman Directors, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and they choose themselves not for re-appointment as Directors of the Company. The Board at
its meeting held on 28" August, 2015 recorded its sincere appreciation for the excellent guidance and
sefvices rendered by them during their fenure of directorship since incorporation of the Company.

The Board at its meeting held on 28" August, 2015 appointed Mr:P Yesuthasen having nearly 40 years of
banking expetience and rich expertise in foreign exchange matters as an Independent Director on the
Board of the Company subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board at its meeting held on 28" August, 2015 re-appointed Mr.P.Sundararajan, Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years from 21.11.2015 and payment of
remuneration io him subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual-General Meeting.

~

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The statutory auditors, M/s. Deloifte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, Coimbatore, (Firm
Registration No.008072S) being eligible for re-appointment have given certificate of consent under
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 for their appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting fo
act as the statutory auditors of the Company from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meefing
till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
The Secretarial Audit report in Form MR-3 for 2014-15 is annexed vide Annexure - 11l
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the exiract of Annual Retum in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith vide
Annexure — V.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public and hence no amount on account of principal or
interest were outstanding for payment on the date of the Balance Sheet.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
In terms of section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2613 read with Rule 5{2) of the Companies

{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the pariiculars of employees as
applicable are given hereunder.




Designation & Nature | Qualification & | Date of | Last
of duties Experience | commen- Employ-

cement ° ment

held

: Mr.P.Sundararajan 1 Chairman and B.Sc
Managing Director 1 {34 years) 118-1.05 S.P
| Apparels

(Notes: (i} Nature of employment: contraciual.

i) The remuneration includes salary, Company's coniribution o provident fund, educational
allowance, medical expenses and other perquisites evaluated as per Income TaxRules
wherever necessary.

(i) Mr.P.Sundararajan, Chairman and Managing Director is related fo Mrs:S Latha, Executive
Director, Mr.S.Chenduran,Director (Operations), Mr.P Velusamy and Mr.P.Ashokaraman,
Directors of the Company.)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A report on Management Discussion and Analysis is attached vide Annexure-V covering the industry
scenatio, opportunities and growth prospects.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your -Company maintains a healthy, harmonious and cordial environment at all levels. The unstinting
efforts and enthusiasm shown by the employees have enabled the-Company to march forward and on par
with the peers in the industry. The Directors hereby place on record their appreciation for the dedication,
hard work and commitment made by the employees at all levels for growth of the-Company.

Your Directors wish {o record their appreciation of the support and significant contributions being
extended to the Company by its customers, suppliers and bankers. Your Directors also wish to thank the
Government authorities and Agencies for their continued cooperation.

Your Directors look forward to have the same support from all connected with the -Company in all its
fuiure endeavors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Avinashi,
28.08.2015




Form AOC4
- (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl
No.

Particulars '

Details

Name of the subsidiary

Crocodile Products
Private Limited

S.P.Apparels
(UK} (P) Lid

Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the holding
company’s reporting period

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as
on the last date of the relevant Financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

Not Applicable

GBP
92.46

Share capital

Rs. 338,000,000/-

Rs. 928,250/

Reserves & surplus

(Rs. 117.975,634/-)

(Rs. 1,478/-)

Total assets

Rs. 19,435,396/-

Rs. 926,772/-

Total Liabilities

Rs. 99,411,030/~

Investments

Nit

-

Turnover

Rs. 241,004,769/-

Profit before taxation

(Rs.1,478/-)

Provision for taxation

Rs. 91,883,290/~
Nil

Profit after taxation

Rs. 76,236,253/

(Rs.1,478/-)

Proposed Dividend

Nil

Nil

%of shareholding

70 %

100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year —Nil

Part “B>: Associates and

>
nEes

Joinf Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related

Associate Companies and Joint Ventares

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

Not Applicable

1.

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2.

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held
by the company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture

Extend of Holding%

3.

Description of how there is significant
inflyence

4.

Reason why the associate/joint venture is
not consolidated




3

. Net worth attributable to shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet

. Profit/l.oss for the vear - - ~

. Considered in Consolidation - - -

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation - - -

1. Mames of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - Mil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold
during the year - Nil

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chariered Accountanis

C K Rajagopal y undararajan ‘ S.Latha

Partner Managing Director Executive Director

M
Place: Avinashi V Balaji S.Sathiya

Date:28/08/2015 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered inta by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

S.P. Apparels Limited has not entered into any contract or arrangerent or transactions with related
parties which is not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

N | Name of related Nature of Nature of Duratio~| Salient Date of

o | party relationship contract/ n ofthe | terms approval by
arrangement/ | contrac- the Board
fransaction ts

Crocodile Products | Subsidiary Sale of goods | On- As per 26/06/2015
Private Ltd company and sefvices transfer
pricing
guidelines

"S.P. Apparels (UK) | Subsidiary | Investmentin Investment | 26/06/2015

{P) Lid | company equity Shares

Mr.P.Sundararajan | Key Lease Rent As per 26/06/2015
Managerial Agreement
| Personnel

Mrs. S.Latha Key Lease Rent | C As perthe | 26/06/2015
Managerial Agreement
Personnel

Poomam Directorship | Sale of goods As per 26/06/2015
Enterprises Private and services transfer
Ltd pricing
guidelines

S.P.Superfine Mills | Directorship | Purchase As per 26/06/2015
P Lid and Sale of transfer
goods pricing
guidelines

Perumal Spinning Directorship | Sale of goods As per 26.06.2015

Mills P Ltd and services transfer
pricing
guidelines

For and on behalf of the Board

Avinashi
28.08.2015
P.Sundararajan
Managing Director
DIN:00003380
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 March 2015.

[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rufe No.9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

S.P.Apparels Limited,

Regd. Office: 39-A, Extension Street,
Kaikattipudur,

Avinashi — 641654,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence fo good corporaie practices by S.P.Apparels Limited (hereinafter called as “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, iis
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31% March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafier.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2015 according to the
provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ((SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment; and
(v) Other applicable laws.
We further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clanf cations on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
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Majority decision is carried through and views of the directors are recorded as patt of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compilance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Avinashi oA\ Signature:

01.08.2015 - SRajaguru

Praciising Company Secretary
Membership No. F2046
Cettificate of Practice No.7701
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To

The Members,

S.P.Apparels Limited,

Regd. Office: 39-A, Extension Street,
Kaikattipudur,

Avinashi —641654.

Our report of even date is to be read along-with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have -followed the audit practices and processes as were approptiate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the processes and praciices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion.
We have not verified the correciness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Whereever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The ‘Secretatial Audit report is neither an assurance as fo the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

-Company.

Avinashi \ ' Siynature:
01.08.2015 ) S.Rajaguru

Practising Company Secretary
Membership No. F2046
Certificate of Practice No.7701




FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to Section 92 {3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Company {Management & Administration) Rules, 2014,

CIN . . |U1B101TZ2005PLCO12295

Registration Date 181 1/2005

Name of the Company . JSP. APPARELS LIMITED
Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited hy shares

) L L, Indian Non-Goverhiment Company
Address of the Registered office & contact details J9A, EXTENSION STREET,KAIKATTIPUDUR,
AVINASHI - 641 654

Phone; +91-4296-304000
E-ail : spindia@s-p-apparels.com

Whether Insied company . . No

Name, Address & contact details of the Reglsirar & Transfer Not applihable
Agent, if any.

SRR

{(All the business activities contributing 10 % or.rhore of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the % 1o total tumover of the
No. F'roduct/serwce company

1 , , Manufaturing of Garments 14101 87.43

address of the Company Holding/ Subsidiary! % of Applicable
Associate shares Section
held

Crocodie Producs Privale Limited | V181017 Z1898PTC008439 | Subsidry Compary 280
S P Apparels (UK)(P) Ltd 902109 Subsidary Company | o] 2870

(i) Category-wise Share Holding . . W . . . L
Category of _ No. of Shares held at the beglnmng of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
Shareholders [As on 31-March 2014] ) [As on 31-March-2015] during the

Demat Physu:al Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total year
. . Shares |, , | . . Shares

A. Promote'rs
(1 jndian_ N 1 1 .
a) Indviduall HUF | 10605000 | 4395000 | 15,000,000 8929%| 10605000 | 4395000 | 15000000  8325%
bCenielGovt | - | - [ oo - : — | 000
o) Stale Govils) | | - T oo 1 3 0.00%
d)Bodies Cop. | | -~ | oo : ‘ -~ 000%
) Banks /I _ - : 0.00%| _ . 0.00%
7) Any other e - I R - 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (1) | 10605,000 | 4395000 | 15000000 | 6929%| 10605000 | 438,000 | 15000000 | 89.5%%

@ Foroigh | 1 .
2) NRI Individuals . 0.00% il ' 0.00%
b) Other Ihdi\(iduals ] . | X . . 0.00%
) Bodies Corp. 0. / - 0.00"/9
d) Any ofher : 00% - . - 0.00%
Sub Total (A) 2 : o - % - : : 0.00%

TOTAL{A) | 10505,088-|_ 4395000 | 15,000,000 | B929%| 10605000 | 4395000 | 16,000,000 80.25%

e ce /Q\/‘ “l\@\\

B. Public_ o/ Ko IpN\D

1. Institutions o { el JORNL
1d

ENT T
\WNASY‘\ fa \,M:\\ﬁ \




o VaualFunds | T I _ T 000%
b) Banks /FI ‘ T | oo | 0.00%
c) Central Govt ‘ . _ A 0 00% . ' T 0.00"/.;
J Stale Goyls) [ ’ 0.00% ' T [ oo
¢) Venture Capilal 0.00% | | 0.00%
Funds

f)ll;nsufance ' ) ' " - _ ‘ 000% 7 =T 0.0b%
oFls | : _ N | ' . 0.00%|
) Foreign Venture | 1,800,000 1800000 | 10.71%| 1,800,000 [~ 7800000 1071%
Capital Funds |

jOhers opectty) |- [ o0 - | - | oom
Subdotal (B){1)- | 1,800,000 | 1800080 | f0.71%| 1,800,000 1800000 10.77%

2. Non-!hstfguﬁons
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indign

ii) Overseas

b} Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual . 0.00%
shareholders holding

nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

_;;) Others (specify) 1 | ‘
Non Resident Indians ) | 1 ‘ ' 0.00"/3
Overseas  Corporate - ' 0.00%
Bodies
fqreign is{éli’onals - | ., . : “ - : 1 000%
ClearingMembers | = - | ey |0.00% : I - 0.00%
Trusts i 7 | | 0 ‘ ;! ) ‘000%
Foreign Bodies - D R - ‘ - ‘ . - - 10.00%)
Sub-total (B)(2)= N -] - T | o0%
Total Public (I?t)' | 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 | | 1,800,000 10 71%

C. Shares held by - . 0.00%
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

1

Grand Total (A+B+C)| 12406000 | 429,000 | 16,800,000 | 10000% 12405000 | 4386000 | 16800000 | 100.00%

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter | . L. L . L ) . o
SN Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change
13 L) el ) 3 : 0 » X . in
No. of Shares| % of total | % of Shares [No. of Shares| % oftotal | % of Shares |shareholdi
Shares of the]  Pledged/ Shares of the| Pledged/ | ng during
company | encumbered fo company jencumbered to| the year
« : PR v b total shares .| ; . total shares.. s
Mr. P. Sundararajan | 1180000  7131% 0[ 11980000  71.31%] of 0.00%
Mrs. 5. Latha ‘ 3,000,000 17.86% o] 3,000,000 17.86% 0 0.00%

(ifi) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is ho change) , .
SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding af the beginning of the year | Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares T % of total No. of shares % of tolal
shares shares

Althe begining of fheyear | oaoi0td [ 14980000|  89.17% 14,980,000  89.17%
Changes during the year . ] 0.00% - 0.00%
- ARETS T 000% | 000%
T 78 = 000% | ooo%
At the end of the year suoaos| || 89.17% 14980000  89.17%




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
__(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN For each of the Top 10 Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulélive Shareholding during the yearA
sharehalders

No. of shares ' % of total ‘ No. oféhafés % of totai
shares shares

At the beginning of the year | 04/01/2014 1 I 11,980,000] 71.31%
Changes during the year - - 0.00%

Aiheendoftheyear | auoarzots | , 11,980,000 T T1980000|  7131%

|atthebeginning of the year | aaiot2014 3000000  17.86% 3000000 17.86%
Changes during the year v - » . - 0‘.00"/{; . -1 000%
Althe end of the year 31/G2015 3000000 17.86%| " 3,000,000]  17.86%

|At the beg ning of ihe yé.a;'. ] 04/011201; ) ‘I,éOO,OOO_V 10.7‘] Ai , 1,800,00[2 . 10.71%
|Changes during the year -] L 0.00%]| L . 0.00"@
Attheendof theyear 31/03/2015 _ 4,800,000 10.71% 1,800,000{ 10.71%

(v) Shareholding of Direcfors and Key Managerial Personnel: . s . . .

SN |Shareholding of each Directors Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative Shareholding during the year

and each Key Managerial
Personnel

No. of shares ' % o.f total N'o‘ of shz;res % of total
shares shares

|Atthe beginning of the year |  04/01/2014 ‘ 11,980,000, 71.31% . 11.980,000| 71.31%

‘(‘thnges‘durjng the year . - . - 0.00% C -] 0.00%

At the end of the year |, 3103205 | “’980'000. 71.31%» 11,980,000f 71.31%

bty r NE— .

At the beginning of the year 04/01/2014 ‘ 3,000,000 1?.853% 3,000,000 17,86%‘
Changes during the year - | ) - {J;OO% - 0.00%
At the end of the year 31/03/2015 e 3,000,000 17.86% 3,000,000 17.86%

e s

indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
(Amt, Rs./Lacs)

Particulars éecured Loans excluding Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
deposits

[ndebtec'[ness atithe i:eginﬁning (;f_theg ﬁl;ancial year ) y L ) . .
i) Principal Amount . 2616759 | 3,270.96 , 29,438.55
i) Interest due but not paid . 23481 ] - . 23461
iii) Interest accrued but not due - -

Change in Indebtedness during the f . L
* Addition ) ) 1.9«58.3_4’
* Reduction . L. ‘ B (1,926.82)

Indebtedness at the end of the ﬁnanpial year
i} Principal Amount ) 21,642.05 | ) 2494453
fi) Interest due but not paid 114.75 . . . _ 114.75
iif} Interest accrued but not due - R

A. Remuneration fo Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andfor Manager:




Particﬁlérs of Remuneration . l:lame of MDMTD/ Manager ‘ Total
. ) Amount
Name(Mr. P. Sundarqrajgan |Mrs. S, Latha {RsflLac)

Chairman and Managing
Director Executive Director

Designation

Gross salary

(a) Salaty as per provisions conl'ained‘in section f?(f} of thé I.ncorrie-tahlt ’
Act, 1961

(bi Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-téx Aqf, 196% . .
{c) Profits in fisu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Comm'ission

- as % of profit

- others, specify
Others, please specify

Total (A)]
Ceiling as per the Act

B. Reinuneration fo other Directors _ ) ) . .
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount

(RsfLac)

independent Directors WiV Sakihive MrV Seniti
Fee for attending board committee meetings ) 080 | . 1. - 0.80

Commission | . - ‘ )
Others, please specify | ] ) i _ -
Tolal (1) ) i Y . o . _ -
Other Non-ExecutivevDirectors_ ) | Mr.Srinivas dhidhambaram MrP.Velusamy Mrj: Ashckaraman
Fee for attending board committee fneetings | ' 060 | 0.60
Commission . - -
Others, please specify | - 3
Tolal () | 0.60 0.60
Total (B)=(1+2) | . 0.60 0.60
Total Managerial Remuneration ‘
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

muneration to Key Manageriat Personnel other than MD/ManagerMVTD

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel . Total
. . . . . . Amount
Name - |MrVBalgj i _ (RsfLac)

Designatioh CEO i ~ CFO

5.

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained iﬁ
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b} Vall;e of perquisites u}s 17(2) Income—%ax
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3}
Income- fax Act, 1961

Sioi:lg_ Qpi'ion
Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify
Others, please specify
Total

Section of Escii Qi Detalls of Penalty Authority [RD / NCLT/ Appeal made,
the o\ ¢\l | Punishment! Compounding COURT] (give Details)
Companies | {2 { (=~ ) | fees imposed
Act ' gy




A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compoundirig
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment .

Qompounding | . .- |
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty ) -
Punishment | -
Compounding -

2 SHNPAI A
CHAIRMAN AND DIRECTOR. .
Q)mt 0000 32 z?O)




S.P.Apparels Limited

Annexure -v
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Global Economic Scenario

The global economy continued to expand during 2014 at a moderate and uneven pace, as the
prolonged recovery process from the global financial crisis was still saddled with unfinished post-crisis
adjustments. Global recovery was also hampered by some new challenges, including a ‘number of
unexpected shocks, such as the heightened geopolitical conflicts in various areas of the world.

Growth of world gross product (WGP) was at 2.6 per cent in 2014, marginally better than the growth of
2.5 per cent registered in 2013, but lower than the 2.9 per cent projected. In the outlook period,
premised on a set of assumptions and subject to a number of uncertainties and downside risks, the
global economy is expected to strengthen in the {ollowing two years, with WGP projected to grow by 3.1
and 3.3 percentin 2015 and 2016, respectively.

China will continue its “soft fall” growth trajectory, as already limited government stimuli will have less
effect despite recent monetary easing, and expose the weakening of China’s creditworthiness clearly.
Other major emerging markets will continue to grow, but their pace will vary depending on the net
impact of declining oil prices and exchange rate depreciations, as well as progress of their own reform
agendas. (Source: UN report).

Indian Economy

India is the ninth largest economy of the globe after the United States, China, Japan, Germany, UK,
France, Brazil and ltaly. The gross domestic product (GDP) at current prices stands at US $ 2.1 trillion
which accounts to 2.65% of the word economy. Critical economic factors like oil prices, foreign
investments, government’s intent for reforms etc. have ftilied in favour of the economy with focus
returning back on the growth and revival of indian economy through improvement in policy decisions,
business and consumer confidence, liberalization of £DI nomms, promotion of investment in
infrastructure and simplification of tax regime. India’s GDP is expected to grow at an annual growth rate
of more than 7.5% for the next 5 years (Source: International Monetary Fund).

Indian Textile and Apparel Industry

India is among the leading textile and apparel manufacturing and exporting countries in the world. The
Indian textile and apparel industry is characterized by its strong vertical integration with presence in
almost all the sub-sectors of the industry starting from fibre to retail and exporis. India’s capability of
producing both natural and man-made fibre based texiile and apparel products, its manpower
availability along with a scope of entrepreneurial talent reflect the robust edifice of growth prospects of
Indian textiles sector.

In 2014, the contribution of textiles and apparel was more than 5% to india’s GDP. India’s textiles and
apparel industry is estimated to be worth US $ 97 billion in 2014; of this, the share of domestic market
was 60% and exports 40%. In 2014, India exported apparel worth US $ 16.5 billion; the share of India in
global apparel exports has increased from 2:6% in 2004 to 3.5% in 2014 (Source: Technopak Analysis)

india exported apparel worth US $ 16.5 billion in 2014, India’s total apparel exports value increased by
a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 7.9% from 2008 to 2014. During this period India’s exports
of woven apparel grew at a faster CAGR 8.1% compared to knit apparel which grew at 7.6%. However,
in the global market, demand for knit appare! has been increasing at a higher rate. Hence, knit apparel
exports is a potential growth opportunity for India.




India remains as a preferable apparel sourcing destination owing to its strengths in an abundant supply
of raw material, vertically integrated supply chain, expertise in value added garment manufacturing,
availability of skilled manpower and wel-established relationship with key global buyers.

India’s apparel exports is expected to grow at a -CAGR of 10% tfo reach US $ 44 billion by 2024, This
will increase India’s share in global apparel exports from 3.6% in 2014 to 5.2% in 2024.

Govermnment Support Schemes

Government of India provides several production and expotts related incentives to promote apparel
manufacturing and exports of India.

Revised Restructured Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (RR-TUFS) supports modernization and
upgradation of the industry. Under this scheme, government provides 5% interest reimbursement and
10% capital subsidy on specified machinery for garmenting units and fabric processing and 5% for
knitting and fabric embroidery.

Scheme for integrated Textiles Parks (SITP) aims to provide the industry world-class infrastructure
facilities for setting up their textile and apparel production units. Under this scheme, Govemment of
India supports by the way of grant or equity limited to 40% of the project cost subject to a-ceiling of Rs.
40 crores to cover cost of common infrastructure and buildings for production/support activities.

Growth Prospects

The increase in volume of business was mainly due to the Company’s existing customers who have
reposed trust and confidence on the Company and its products. The Company has comfortable order
position for execution {ncluding for new orders) to all its existing customers, There was no increase in
the number of customers on the export front, however, the Company identified a few global players
based in Europe for long period similar to our existing customers. With addition of these new
customers, the Company would enlarge its customer base besides improving its growth rate.

The Company has achieved a higher 12 % of its export sales in comparison to the previous year. In
order to meet out the sales target we have increased the capacity by addition of 3 new factories.

As our customers are expecting value addition to their businesses such as design support and technical
support, we have incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in UK which is headed by an expert hailing
from UK with 40 years of experience in the same field. He has wide business connections with top
retailers in UK. In addition to service support, this company will source directly from various countries
for retailers of other products and has been receiving orders for execution.

The Company has installed new machineries in its Dyeing division with a capital expenditure of around
Rs.4.50 crores thereby the bottlenecks in finishing operations have been removed which in tum
enhanced the productivity with improved quality.

The Company proposes io enlarge its production base shortly with a capital expenditure of around
Rs.1.50 crores to improve the quality of yarn and to make use for captive consumption.

Retail Division

Though there was a closure of 12 non-performing stores during the period, the Company has increased
by opening of equal number of stores having larger area through its franchisee which compensates the
volume of retail business.

Major improvements have been made in the Company’s undergarment business by segregation into ()
Wholesale Division and (i) Direct Retail Stores (DRS). The Company has opened up its DRS
headquarters at Bangalore strategically to meet the fashion driven hub of retail business. We have




employed rich experienced personnel to head each of these divisions and these divisions are giving
effective results. ,

The Company is already in the undergament business and in order to cater to the increase in its
volume, we have allocated considerable capacity to execute uninterrupted supply for our domestic
business and expect more volume of sales. We also have a plan fo put up an exclusive garment factory
to cater to the domestic business.

There are very few brands in India for women'’s wear whereas a big market exists in this segment. The
Company has decided to launch its -own brand “NATALIA” for women’s innerwear and activewear. In
addition to outsourcing, the Company would use its in-house capacity to meet the products
requirements of this business.

Crocodile brand sub-licence

The Company has obtained sub-license rights from M/s.Crocodile Products Private Limited (CPPL) fo
manufacture, distribute and market Crocodile brand products of adults menswear such as, shirts, polo
shirts, T-shits, trousers, Jeans, sweaters, jackets and adults men’s innerwear such as, vest, brief,
boxer shoris, socks under “Crocodile” brand for the territory of India for a penod of 7 (seven) years
commencing from 1% October, 2015 and subsequent period renewal will be in line with the renewal of
the license agreement between M/s.Crocadile Intemational Pte Ltd (CIPL) and CPPL. The Company
has executed an agreement for the same and is in the process of achieving higher growth with this
addition of brand value products.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF S.P. APPARELS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of S.P. APPARELS LIMITED
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31¢ March, 2013, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 2 true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditers’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereundet. .

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
matetial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant fo the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinien on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the apprapriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
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accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as wel} as-evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe thet the audif evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accourting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 28 to the financial statements regarding the legal action against a bank.
The ultimate ottcome of the matter cannot presently be determined and no provision for liability or
any consequential adjustment that may result has been made in the financial statements which have
been reported in the previous year also,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repert) Order, 2015 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (L1} of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

. As required by Section 143 .(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In cur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the.Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

{Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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{(f) With respect to the other matters to-be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 27(i) to the financial statements;:

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0080725

C.R. Rajagopal
Partner

Avinashi, 28" August, 2015
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of
our report of even date)

Having regard to the nature of the Company's business / activities / results during the year, clause v of
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

()

In respect of its fixed assets:

(@}  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides
for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

In respect of its inventories:

{d)  As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals. ‘

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

{c)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
‘Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted Joans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has granted loan te one party
and the amount outstanding during the year has been closed. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (iii} (a) & (b} of the order are not applicable to the company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and
services and during the course of our audit we have not observed any continuing failure to
cotrect major weaknesses in such internal control system.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audif) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central
Governmerit under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the
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opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We
have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or-complete,

According to the information and explanations given to us, in -respect of statutory dues:

(@  The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees® State [nsurancs, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable o it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
3ist March, 2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable,-except for the duss given below.

Name of | Nature of | Amount | Period to | Due Date Date of
Statute { Dues {(Rs. In|which the Payment

Miitions) | amount
, ] relates
1 Income  tax | Income tax 0.26 | AY 2011-12 | 26" March | Not paid
1Act, 1961 ] 2014
| Income  tax | Advance tax | 7.21 | AY 2015-16 | 15" June 2014 | Not paid
Act, 1961
Income tax | Advance fax 14.43 | AY 2015-16 | 15" September | Not paid
Act, 1961 2014

Details of dues of [ncome Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Cess which have not heen deposited as on 31st
March, 2015 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Statute | Nature | Forum where | Period to Amount
" | of Dues | Dispute is | which  the Involved
Pending Amount Rs. In
Relates Millions)
Income tax Act, | Income | CIT Appeals (1) | AY 2009-10 22.58
1961 1ax
Income tax Act, | Income | CIT Appeals{Il) | AY 2006-07 173.38
1961 tax .
Tamilnadu VAT { VAT DC Appeals FY 2006-12 5.02
Act, 2006
Finance Act, | Service | CCE Appeals (I} | FY 2008-13 0.54
1994 tax
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(d) There are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 (1 of 1956) and Rules made thereunder.,

The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year, and the
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in
the immediately preceding financial year,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Compaity
had delayed in the repayment of dues to banks during the year. As at the year end the
company has delayed in the repayment of Rs.60 Millions which has subsequently been made
good. The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to the financial institutions.
The Company has not issued any debentures,

Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given
guarantees for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions.

I our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were
obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given fo us,
nio fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year. ‘

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No, 0080728

C.R. Rajagopal
Partner
Membership No. 23418

Avinashi, 28" August, 2015




S, P. APPARELS LIMITED .
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015
gl s T - N : {Rg. In Mlllicns)

- | Asat3istiarch | A< st 378t March

ey £oa .
Particuiars 2015 2014

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1Shareholders’ funds iy

{d) Share capftal 440.49" 44043

{b} Reservas and surplus £92.14 798.04
’ 1,332.63 1 1,238.83

Non-current Habilities .
(a} Long-tents borrowings 693.96 883714

(b} Deferred tax fiabilities {ned) 318.88 17247

k 1.010.84 1,056.18

Curvent liabilities .
{a) Shon-term borrowings 1,565.89 1.728.2¢
{) Trade payablas 1,182.16 1,059.74
{c} Other current Habilities 283.99 419.72
{d) Short-term provisions B87.30 36.14

3,129.34 3,243.89

5472.81 5,538.60

ASSETS
Non-current xssets
{3} Fixed assels
(i} Tangible assets 2,669.44 2.755.14
fii) Intangible assets 15.06 20,32
{iiiy-Capital work-in-prograss 100.00 -
. 2,784.50 277548
(b} Non-cirrent investments 68,25 83.74
(¢) Long-term loans and advances 381.97 317.58
3.235.72 3.158.79

Current assets
(2} Current invastments 319 7.08
{b} Inventories 1.088.54 1.265.71
{c) Trade receivables - 761.78 552.54
{d} Cash and cash equivalents 67.02 143.56
(e} Short-term loans and advances 312.98 404,87
(0 Other cunsnt assels 3.61 B.25
) 2,237.05 238181

TOTAL| ’ 547281 ‘ 6,538.60

‘IS¢e accompanying notes forming past of the financial
E:tltamerm

In terms of our report attached,

For Delolite Hasking & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors

Chartered Accountants

Chief Fistancial Company Sacretiary

Place: Avinash == Place : Avinashi
Date: Agf&’f&* \Y Date : £,%/ogf30\5




§. P. APPARELS UIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENGED 5T MARCH 2016

{Rs.In Milliony)

Particutars

For the year ended
31st March 2018

For the year ended
3%t March 2014

REVENUE
Revenue from opérations {gross)
jLess: Excisa-duty

JRevenua from operations (net)

Other income
- Total revenue (132)

J1Expenses
{a) Cost of matsrials consumed
{b) Purchases of stock-in-trade (raded goods)

In-progress and stock-in-frade

(d) Employee banefils expense

(e} Financa costs

{h Depreciation and amortization expense
(g} Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit bafore tax {3 - 4)

1Tax expense / {bensfit);
{a) Current tax expense
{b} {Less): MAT credit
{c} Short / (Excess) provision for tax relating to
prior years
{d) Net current lax oxpenss
(o) Deforved Tax
Net tax expanse 7 {benefil}

Profit for the Year (§-6)

-[Eamingis per shars {of Rs 10/- each):
{a)Basic
{0)Dituted

See accompanying notes forming part of the

{¢) Changes in inventories of finished goods, wark-

4.817.11

4,485.93

481711
7.60

4,486.99
11.87

4,487.86

1.855:56
133.23
Ba72

1,014.88
311.53
107.47
924,43

4.824.71

1,763.45
116.48
238,18

801,16
355.62
175.10
83221

4,563.52

4,372.20

254.89

125.66

53.43
53.43

4,68

25.14
25.14
0.81

468
145.73

0.91
50.61

150.41

51.42

104.48

74.24

875
564

4.42

I}
Tn terms of our report attached.

For Dalolite Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountanis

={ comsarore
641 018

For and on bohalf of ths Boa

V, Balajt
Chtaf Flna\n\clal

Placs :  Avinashi
Date: 2,808 [%0t5

of Directors

I e

$.Latha
Exscutive Diroctor




S. P. APPARELS LIMITED

* CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR EHBED H!ARCH 31,2015 e el

{Rs. i1 Miliions)
For the year endad 3ist | For the year ended

] March 2015 I 31st March 2014

Paticulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES | ;
Profit befot;e tax 254.89 125.66
|Adiustments far:
Depreciation and amodization expense 197.47 475.10
(Profit) Aoss on aale of assets 11.05)] (0.03)
Net {gain}loss on sale of investmerits - {0.29)
Bad debts written off 1.77 £.16
Brovision for doublful {rade receivables 0.40 {10.24)
Finance costs 311.53 | 355.62
Intersst income - {5.20) {9.39)
Unvealised exchange (gain)foss 1.87 5.84
Provision for MTM {gain}/lass on forward contracts (22.74) 16.18
Operating profits beforo worﬁlng capital changes 738.94 663.72
han In workin
Adjustments for (mcn:asa) /decrease in operaling assels: :
Invenlories 177.16 ] 525 |
Trade receivables (215.32) (38.83)
Loans and agvances/Current assels 645 {6.28}
Adjustments for increase / {decreasa} in operating Hiabilities: 5
Trade payables/Other current iabilities/Provisions 155.19 {34.43)

JCash Generated from Opsrations | 86242 5838.43
JHetincome tax (paid} £ refunds {29.25) 13.83)
Nat cash flaw from / (used In} operating activitias 833.17 685.50

18. CASH FLOW FROM IRVESTING ACTIVITIES
{Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances {149.80) (77.91)
Procaeds from sale of fixed assets 2.18 12.85
Bank depusis not considered as cash equivalents 80.74 (78.85)
Purchase of long term investmaonts - Others (5.52) -
JProceeds from sale of fong tenn investments 3.89 286
Interest received - Bank deposits ] £.83 | 3.51

] Net cash ftow from / (used in} investing sctivities {58.68)} {137 .54}

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issua of Share capital - 7248
Proceedsi{repayment) of long term borowings {287.00) {238.41)
Proceeds/{repayment) of short term borrowings {160.31) 9,62
Finance costs (322.97) {375.65)
Net cash flow from 7 {used ln) financing activities (770.28} {443.04)

[Net Increase # {decreass) in Cash anxd cash equivalents 4.4 492
Gash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year 35.70 3075
1Effect of axchange differences on restatement of foreign cuenty Cash and
Teash equivalents {0.02) 0.03

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 39.89 35.70

Cash and cash equivalents at the-end of the year comprises of
(2} Gash on hand 8.55 2.97
(b} Balances with banks
In current account 3B 273
in EEFC account

39.89 35,70

‘Isee accompanying notas forming part of the Anancial statoments
In terens of our report attached.
For Dololtte Haskins & Sells ; For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chantered Accountants \,\_D\

P.Sundararsjan Latha
Manay! kecutive Director

| S
V.Balai \j "\ sézmya

Chief Flnanciat Company Secretary

Place : Avina Plate : Avinashi
Date : ::_ZPH E'PM\& Date : 280 [2.015
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Notas forming part of the financlal statements

1. Significant Accounting Polices

1.1 Basis of Acgcounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in agcordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in Indiz (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
relsvant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the 2013 Act") /-Companies Act, 1956 ("the 1956 Act’), as
applicable. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent
with those foliowed in the previous year, .

1.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian-GAAP requires the Management to
make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabifities {including
contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that
the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results.
could differ due fo these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

1.3 Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed Assets are stated as cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of assets comprises of purchase
price and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working conditions for its intended use including
borrowing cost and incidental expenditure during construction incurred up to the date of commissioning.

Capital work in progress includes building under construction, construction expenditure incurred thereon and
interest on the funds deployed. ’

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided under straight line method based on useful life prescribed in
Schedule ~ I of the Companies Act, 2013 Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the
straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1i to the Companies Act, 2013 except in
respect of the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as
under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacernent, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.:

General Plant & Machinery - 20 years
Computers & Servers 5 years
Buildings - others 30 years
Office Equipmenis 10 years
Vehicles Car 10 years
Vehicles Cthers 8 years

1.4 Invastments

Long term investments are valued at cost, less provision for dirninution, other than temporary,in the value of
such investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and market value.

1.5 Inventories

Raw Materials, Stores, consumables and packing materials are valued at cost. Work in Progress is valued at
cost and includes production overheads as estimated by Management. Finished goods are valued under
absorption cost basis at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other
iosses wherever considered necessary. Fabric waste is valued at net realisable vaiue.
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1.6 Revenue Racognition and Other income

> .Revenue from sales are recognised net of returnis, rébates and trade discounts, when tisk and rewards of
ownership of the.goods are transferred to the customer, which generally coincides with dispatch of goods
from factory. -

‘Export incentives comprising mainly of duty drawback are recognised as revenue on accrual basis, wiierever
certainty of receipts and value thereof are known.

Revenue from job work undertaken is resognised on delivering the goods to the customer en completion of
the work.

interest income is accounted on accrual basis. Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive
the income is established.

1.7 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transaction in foreign cumrencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary -foreign currency assets and liabilities are transiated at the year end exchange rate. Resulfant
gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.

The accounting standard AS 11{Revised 2003) on the “Effects of Changes in foreign exchange rates” which
was amended with effect from Aprit 1, 2004 provides guidance on accounting of Forward contracts. The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has clarified that AS 11 {Revised) is not applicable to the forward
contracts which are for hedging highly probable forecasted fransactions.

The Company has entered in to forward contracts which are designated as hedge of highly probable
forecasied transactions. The Gainfiosses of forward contracts designated as highly probable forecasted
transactions are recognised in the Profit and Loss account in the period in which the forecasted transactions
is expected toc ocour.

1.8 Employee henefits

Short term .

Short term employee benefits are charges off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related
service is rendered.

Long term

Post retirement benefits comprises of Provident Fund and Gratuity which are accounted as follows:

. Provident Fund

This i z defined contribution plan,and contributions made to the fund are charged to statement of Profit and
loss. The company as no further obligations for future provident fund benefits other than monthly
contributions.

{l. Gratuity - Funded

This is a defined benefit plan. The Company makes annual ¢contribution to a gratuity fund administered by
LIC. The liability is determined based on the actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in full in statement of profit and loss for the pericd which they occur. The
retirement Benefit obligation recognised in the Balance sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for un-recognised past service cost.

li. Leave Encashment

There is no scheme for encashment of un-availed leave on retirament. Leave encashment of employees are
paid annually and provision is made on accrual basis.




4.9 Taxas on Incoma
" Provision for tax includes provision for current income tax,deferred tax-and wealth fax.

Provision for deferred tax is made for all timing differences arising between taxable incomes and accounting
income at currently enacted {ax rates. Deferred tax assets arising from timing differences and unabsorbed
losses are recognised only where there is a virtual certainty that deferred tax assets can be realised against
future taxable profits.

Pravision of current tax is made for the tax payable under income tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance {o the Indian tax laws, which gives rise to future ecohomic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future ingome tax fability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the company will pay normal {ax during the specified pericd. Accordingly, MAT
credit is recognised as an asset in the Balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit
associated with it will flow to the company and the asset can be measured reliably.

1.10 Intangible Assets

intangible assets include software licenses, trademarks, patents and copy-rights. Software licenses are
amortized over a period of five years. Trademarks, patents and copyrights weuld be amortized on a straight
line basis over their expacted useful lives.

1.11 Borrowing Costs

Bormrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are
capitalized (net of TUF subsidy) till the month in which asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred.

1.12 Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
grant/ subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy
relates to an expense item,it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them on a
systematic basis to the costs,which is intended to compensate. When the grant or subsidy relates to an
asset, its value is deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of the refated asset.

1.13 impairment

The catrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any indication exists, the assets are recoverable amount is estimated. An
{mpairment loss is recoghized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

1.14 Loases

Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially ali the risks and rewards incidental o
ownership of the leased item,are capitafized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum
lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the ieased
term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as as expense item in the
statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

1.15 Earnings per share

Ths earnings considered in ascertaining the company's EPS comprise the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders after tax and includes the post tax effect of any extraordinary item. The number of shares used
in computing the basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The
number of shares used in computing diluted EPS comprises of weighted average shares considered for
deriving basic EPS, and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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116 Provisions and contingencies e,

A provision is récognised when-an enterprise has a-present obligation.as a result of the past event and it is
-probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
‘estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each ‘balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised, however contingent liabilities are
disclosed in the notes on accounts.

-4.17 Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

-Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
{with an original maturity of three months or {ess from the date of acquisition}, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value. '

1.18 Cash flow statement
*Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Accounting

Standard 3 -Gash flow Statement. Cash and Cash equivalents for cash flow statement comprises cash at
bank and in hand and bank deposits with @ maturity of three months or less. :
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S, P, APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. In Milfions)

NOTE 3 RESERVES & SURPLUS -

B, Particufars

As at 31st March

2015

As at 3ist March
2014

1{=) Securities premium account
Opeaning balance
tess : Utilized during the year
" Closing balance

(b) Sumplus / (Deficif) in Siatement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Less: Depregiation on traasition to Schedule Il of the-Companies
Act, 2013 on tangible fixed assets with nil remaining useful life (Net
of deferred Tax) {Refer Note 34)
Add: Profit for the year
Less: Dividends proposed lo be distibuted to preference
shareholders (Rs.0.80/ per share)
Less: Tax on dividend
Closing balance

104,48

6.52

1.30

$68.95

464.85

892,14

708.04

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

{Rs. In Millions)

Particufars

As at 31st March
2015

As at 31st March
2014

(a) Tetm Joans

From banks
Secured

() Loans and advances from related parties {Refer Note 42)
Unsecured

{c } Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations (Refer Note 40(i))
Secured

{d) Other loans and advances
Unsecured

1.00

693.56

883.71

- Unsecured loan from promoters are repayable after two years

- The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues

- Secured Term Loans from banks are repayable Monthly / Quarterly over a petiod of 7 Years.

For the current maturities of long tetm bomowings refer items in Note 7 Other Current Liabilities.

- For Term loans, the first change on fixed asssts is given to respective banks. Second charge on the cument gssets
been extended to the banks where ever possible. Where ever the first charge on the fixed assets are not provided o
{banks the prometers have provided their properties and personal guarantee as security.

- Finance Lease repayable in less than 5 years, secured by Hypothecation of asset purchased under hire purchase.




NOTE 5 SHORT TERM BEORROWINGS

{Rs. In Millicns)

Particulars ’

As at 31st March |
2015

As at 31st March
2014

l(a) Loans repayable on demand
From banks
Secured

(b) Other loans and advances
Unsecured

Total

1,564.69

a.20

1,728.29

4,565.89

1,728.29

company in favour of Jending banks on paripassu basis.
-The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues

Working Capltal loans are secured by first charge on the current assets of and second charge on the fixed assels of the

NOTF § TRADE PAYABLES

{Rs. In Miflions)

Particulars

As at 3st March
2015

As at 1st March
2014

Trade payables:
Other than Acceptances (Refer Note 33)

1,182.16

1,059.74

1,192.16

1,058.74

NOTE 7 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Rs. {n Milllons}

Particulars

As at 31st March
2015

As at 31st March

(a) Current maturities of long-term debt {Refer Note 4)
(b} Current maturities of finance fease abligations {Refer Note 4)
{¢} Interest accruad but not due on borrowings
4{0) Interest acerued and due on borowings
{8} Other payables
{i) Statutory remitlances
(ii) Payables on purchase of fixed assets
(iii) Trade / security deposits received

233.09
1.52
0:54

11.47

16.30
1742
3,95

.08
52.90
242

263.89)

4198.72

NOTE 8§ SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

{Rs. In Milligns}

Particutars

As at 35t March
2015

As at 315t March
2014

1(a) Provision for employee Benetits:
Provision for gratuity {net) {(Refer Note 38}
(b) Provision - Others:
{i} Provision for tax (net of advance tax Rs. 34.91 Millions (As at
31st March 20144 Rs.5.67 Millions)
{ii) Provision for Propased preference dividend
{ili} Provision Tor tax on proposed preference dividend

30.28

49.18
652
131

16.27

18.87

87.30
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5. P. APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

NOTE 10 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

{Rs. in Mililons)

Particulars

As ai J1st March
2015

As at 318t March
2014

Unquoted

Unguoted

TRARE

{at} Investment In Equity Instrumants
~ Subsidiaries
(i} 266,000 shars (As at 315t March 2014 - 266,000
Sharas) of Rs.100/ sach fully paid up in-Crocodile
Products Private Limited

{ii} 10,000 shares (As at 315t March 2014 = NILy of 1
GBP each fully paid up in §.P. Apparels UK (P} Limited
OTHER INVESTMENTS
{{a) Investment in Equity Instruments - Others
(1) 36,480 shares (As at 318t March 2014 - NIL) of R3.
10 f-each fully paid up in Gayathri Sustainable Energies
Private Limited
(i) 4,20,400 shares {As at 31st March 2014 — NIL) of Rs.
10 /-aach fully pald up in LNGS P Ltd.

Tolal

63.74

NOTE 41 LONG TERM LOANS AND ABVARCES

(Rs. in Milllons)

Particuiars

As at 318t March
2015

4 As st 31 March, 2014

Unsecured and considerad good
1(g) Capital advances

(b) Security deposits

1(c} MAT credit entittoment

{dy Balances with govemment authoritiss
{1} VAT credit receivable

(i) Incoma Tax Recalvable
(il} Cthers

{e) Other loans and advances {Refer Note 28)

24.26

60.62

0.04
1115
416

166.70

112.04

21.77,
52.20
§8.18

0.04

1118
5.58|

168.70

381.97

317.69

NOTE 42 CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(Rs. fn Millions)

Particulars

As at 315t March
2015

As at 31st March
2054

Othar current investments (At lower of coat and net
Jreatisable value}

i(a) Investment in mutual funds

Milestons Reat estate fund

Unquoted

3.18

Unquoted

7.08

3.18

7.08




S. P. APPARELS LIMITED - -
Hotes forming part of the financla! stotements

NOTE 13 _INVENTORIES

(Rs. In Millions)

Particulars

Ax at 313t March
2015

As-at 31st March
2014

(At lower of cost arxd net realiable value)

{a} Raw malerials

b} Work-in-progress

1oy Finished goods {other than those acquired far trading)
{d} Stock-in-trade (scquired for trading)

496.16]
370.10
44.48
7253
105.27.

696.77
41338
4375
57.72
139.11

1{e} Stores and Consumables
1 TOTAL

1,088.54

1,265.71

[Petalls of Inventory of Work-In-progress
{a) Garment
‘Hb) Yam

344.56
25,54

388.83
23.53

370.19

413.36

NOTE 14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

{R=. in Miilions}

Particulars

As at 31t March
2015

As at 318t March
2014

1Trade receivables outstanding for a petiod exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

7.98
040

26.25 |

tess: Provislon for doubtful frade receivables

8.38
0.40

26.25

10ther Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good

7.98

763.77 |

28.25

526.29

753.77

"526.29

764,75

£52.54

NOTE 15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

{Rs. ln Millions)

Particulars

As af 31st March |
2015

As at 3tst March .
2014

|A. Cash and cash equivatents {(as per AS 3 Cash Flow
Statements)

{a} Cash on hand
{b} Balances with banks
In curent accounis

297

32.73

Total « Cash and cash equivalents (as per AS 3 Cash Flow,
Statemants) (A}

35.7¢

8, Other bank balances
{7 In earmarked accounts
- Balances held as margin monay o security against
borrewings
Totat - Other bank balances (B}
__TOTAL

107.86

07.86

4358

KHOTE 16 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

{Rs. In Mitlions)_

Particulars

As st 31ist March
2015

As at 31st March
2014

|Unsecured, considersd good
{a) Loans and advances to retated parties {Refer Note 42)

(b) Loans and advances 1o employees
{¢) Prepald expenses

() Balances with government authorities
{iy Export Incentives Recejvabias
(H) VAT credit receivable
{iiiy Service Tax credit recelvable
(v} Terminal exclse duly raceivable
{v} TUF receivable
{iv} Income Tax refund recelvable
{e} Othars
(i) Advance to suppliers
{ii} Qthers

0.70
1.04)
9.86

148,29
38.52

Q.18
28.03

4291
43.57

1174
7.65
740

133.04

17.14
0.01

386.25

7080
20.64

31298

404 67

17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

{Rs. In Miliions

Particulars

As at 31st March
M5

Ag at 315t March
2014

Accruals
Interest accrued on Bank deposits

361

8.25

fToTAL -

3.61

8.25

£, (‘:‘.-,\\
SN




S. P. APPARELS LIMITED
Hotes farming part of tim financixl staterents.

{Rs, In Millions)

NOTE 18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

. Particulars

For the yeur endect

31t March 2015

For the yoar endad
318t March 2014

(a) Sale of Products (Refer Note (i) below}

1{b) Sale of Services (Refer Note {ii) below)

J{¢) Other Oparating Revenues {Refer Note (jii) below)
Revenue from operations {Gross)

Less: Excise Duty

4,271.80

208.21
397.10

4,006.4C -
207.73
271.86

4,817.11

4,485.93

4,817.11

4,485.93

i){Sale of Products comprises:
Manufactured Goods
Garments

Yam

ATraded Goods
{Yam

Fabric

1Catton Waste
Gaments

|Sale of Services compriscs:
Lyeing charges

Embroidery charges

JPrinting charges

‘|Others

Other-Oparating Revenues comprises:

Duty Draw Back and other Export iricentives.

1Sata of Scrap

Net gain/{loss) on foreign curmency transactions (other than
Jeonsidered as finance cost}

Others

3,774.58
17228

3,350.35
220.09

3.946.95°

3.5870.44

Q.73
96.96
4.92
162.24

1.85
276.38

6.31
151.33

264.85

435.96

200.72
2.81
3.29
1.32

196.84
672
261
1.56

208,21 |

207.73

337,22 |
0.55

5833

308,12
0.78

{35.12)
0.10

397.10

271.88

ROTE 19 OTHER (NCORE

{Rs. n Milllons}

Particulars

| Fortheyear snded

31st March 2015

Farthe year ended
31st March 2014

' {a) Interast Incoms on bank deposits

J{b} Other nen-operating Income (net of expenses directly
atiributable to such income} (Refar Note () below)

5.19

241

5.38

248

Total

7.60

1$1.87 .

Other non-operating income comprisea:
Rental income

Profit on sate of fixed assete

‘|Profit or Redemption of lnvestments
Missellanecus income

0.67
1.05

-0.69

0.67
C.83
628
0.59

2.41

2.48




S. P. APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Re. It Miillons)

NOTE 2¢_COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

" Paticuiars

{'For the year ended

3tst March 2015

Jist March 2014

T1Opening Stock
1Add: Purchasss

iless: Closing Stock

INOTE 20 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED _

1.811.91

745.88

§511.94
1.987.38

2,556.89
601.43

2.499.33
745.88

1,855.56

1,753.45 |

iPOrchases comprises:
Yam
Fabric
TAccessorigs
JCatton
Chemical & Dyes
{Packing Materials, Stores & Consumables

Tolalv

473.43
371.32
207.13
169.23
213.78
376.21

§26.34
587.92
181.44
124,47
171.87
383.95

1,811.11

s

1,987.38

{Rs. In Millicns)

Particulars

. NOTE 21 PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE (TRADED GOODS)

For the year ended
318t March 2615

For the year unded
31st March 2014

Gaments

Total

133.23 ;

115.48

133.23

11548

NOTE 22 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WIP AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

{Hs. In Millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31sf March 2015

For the year ended
31st March 2014 °

Inventorics at the and of the year:
Finished goods

H\Work-in-progress

1Stock-In-trade

Invenitarios at the benlnning of the year:
Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Stack-in-trade

370.10
72,83

44.48

48.75
413.38
57.72

48711

5§19.83

48.78
41336

5772

27.81
674.83
56.16

519.23

753.00

3272

239.17

Nat {increase] | decraass

NOTE 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

{Rs. In Miflions)

Farticulars

For the year ended
Jtst March 2016

For the year ended
31stMarch 2014

TSaianes & wages
{Stalt wolfare expanses

{Contrinution to provident & other funds (Rafer Note 36)

818,12
75.21
121.55

672.44
41.05
87.68

1,014.88

80117

For tha yoar ended |- .,



{Rs. Ins Milllons)

_NOTE 24 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars

T Fortha year ended

31st March 2016

For the year ended |

“Ha} Tnterest axpénse o

(i} Bometwings

| (6) Others - Interest & bank charges
(b) Other borrowing cost

(=) Nat (Gain}f Lass on foreign cumency transactions

27315 |
36,51

i March 2014 |

29484
§8.40

0.07

262

365.63

NOTE 25 OTHER EXPENSES

(Rs. In Milltons)

* Particuiars

For the yaar ended
31st March 2016

For the year gnded |
318t March 2014

cwsr & Fusli
JRepairs & Maintenance - Building
JRepaits & Maintenances - Machinary
JRepaira & Maintenanca - Othars
4Fabrication Charges
{Other Manufacturing Expenses
Payments to Auditors(Refer Note G} below)
Insurance
jLegal & Professional Charges
Pdnting and statienery
JCommunication
Traveling and canveyance
-[Fastory lease rent
Rent
Rates and taxes
Donation
‘1Expenditure on-Corporate Social Responsibility {Refer Note 41)
Managerial remuneration
iDirector sitting foes
jCotnmission
[Freight and forwarding
Discount and allowarce
Businass promotion
|Bad Debts written off
4Provisions for doubtful trade receivables
1Provisions for MTM {Gain)/l.oss on forwand contracts
{Miscelianous expenass

188.79

23.01 1

72.99
23.42
54.19

361.05

1.85
4,80
8.50
10.36
a.51
26.18
3.78
18.45
10.76
0412
0.54
12.00
010
1.64
83.33
12.87
12.95
177
$.40
(22.74)
12.53

187.75
8.0
52.05
1835
41.68
366.87
211
5.83
11.78
878
4.58
24.27
3,68
18.07
13.27
.76

8.40
0.13
3.69
102.68
1361
1049
8.16 |
{10.24)
18.18
14.81

924.43

832.21

{1y Payment to auditors comprises:
Ag auditors - statutory audit {including service tax)
Far texation mafters
For other services
Reimbursement of expenses

1.35
0.14
0.32

1.85

COIMBATURE
6541 (18




Notas fonming part of the financial statements

Additlonal information to the financial statements

The Company's building are located on own land and lzase own lands. The promater-director has executed lease deeds in faveur
of the company in respect of fand measuring 34.37 acres for a period of 29 years. Of the 34.37 acres, the lease deed has been
registered in respect of 28.93 acves and for the balance §.44 acres registration remains to be effecied.

The Company's processing division building at Perundurai is ocated on lease hold tand taken from SIPCOT for a pericd of 89
years. The company had acquired leasehold rights for land from SIPCOT which earlier stood in the name of Mfs. Poomam
Beverages PvtLtd for remaining period of 95 years. The Building was taken on lease form M/s. Poornam Beverages Pvt, Lid.

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) {Rs. In Millions}
As at 31st March As at 31st March
2015 2014

Particulars

(i} Contingent liabilities
Qutstanding import letter of credit

Cutstanding inland letter of credit

Qutstanding expart obligations for £PCG license
: Income tax demand - disputed

- 2006-07

1 ~2008-10

|service tax demaad ~ disputed
-2008-09102012- 13

VAT demand - disputed
- 2006-07 10 201112

Further Cash flows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt
of judgements / decigions pending at varlous forums / authorities.

(i) Commitments

Estimated amount of Confracts remaining to be executed on the Capital Accounts
j(Tangible) and not provided for {Ne! of Advances) as confirmed by the
management. 0.799 14.86

Lang term Loans and Advances includes Rs. 168.70 Milfions (As at 31st March 2014 Rs, 168.70 Millions) considered recoverable
from a bank in respect of payments made towards matured foreigh currency contracts, The Company has filed & suft which is in
the hearing stage. Based on similar instances and the industry wide representation on this matier, the management is of the
opinicn that no provision is considered necessary in the financial statements,

{Rs. In Mifllons)

Earnings in foreign exchange

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the year snded
31st March 2014

36879.04

3240.30

| . Exports on FOB

Expenditure in foralgn currency

{Rs. In Millions)

Particulars

For the yaar ended
31st March 2018

For the year ended
31at March 2014

' - Traveling expenses
- lj'_rol’essional fees and others

1.00
3.28

1.21
108.45

Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

{R=. In Millions}

Particulars

For the year endod
31st March 2015

For the year ended
21st March 2014

- Fabric

~ Agcessories and packing materials
~Spares and dyes

- Capital goods

0.00
9237
.00
2.25

26.08
102,75
4.64
0.00




{Rs. In Millions)

: ‘Patticulars

» Details of consumption og imported and indigenous items - -

For the year andea

- 31st March 2015

For the year ended
31st March 2014 4

i ~ Impored raw materials
.~ Indigenous raw materials
- imporled raw materials
‘L= Indigenous raw materials

"{Rs. In Millions)

*{Rs. In Millions}
(%}
%)

92.37
1851.97
© 4.75%

95.26%

128.83|
1974.04
" 6.12%,
93.88%

In accordance with the notification No. ‘GSR 719(E} dated 16.11.2007 issued by the Ministiy of Corporate Affairs, cerfain
disclosures are required {0 be made relating to Micro, Small & Medium Development Act, 2006. The Management during thelr

review has not identified any supplier covered under this Act.

Consequent to implementation of the Companles Act 2013 and the change in the useful life of the assets, the depreciation charge
for the year is higher by Rs. 16,65 Millions. With respect to assets whose useful life has been exhausted, as at 01st April 2014 the
residual value amounting to Rs.2.55 Millions (Net of Defferred Tax} has been adjusted to Surplus in Profit & Loss Account.

Deferred t§x (liabilities) { agsets

{Rs. [n Milliong)

Particulars

31-03-2015

31-03-2014

1Tax eifect of tems constituting deferred tax liabilities

1Tax effect of items constituting deferred {ax assets

Unabsorbed depreciation carried forward
Others

Deferred tax (liabilities) ! assets {net)

On difference between book batance and tax balance of fixed assets

(360.78)

51.48 -
(7.59)

(316.88)|

{353.69)

175,71
5.50

{172.48

{The ‘Company has recognised deferred fax assel on unabsorbed depreciation based on the Management's estimates of future
profits cansidering the non-cancellable customer orders received by the Gompany.

Earnings per shars

{Rs. In Millions

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2045

For the year endad
31st March 2015

1Basic

{Profit for the year

Less : Preference dividend and tax thereon

Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders
INumber of Weighted average equity shares

Par value per share

(Rs. In Millions)

{Rs. In Millions)

{Rs. In Millions)

{Nos. in Millions)
Rs

104.48
7.82

74.22

96.66
16.80
10.00

7422
16.80
18.00

IEarning Per Share - Basic

Rs

575

4.42 |

Diluted

Prafit for the year

Less : Preference dividend and tax thereon

Profit for the year attributable {o the equity shareholders
Number of Weighted average equity shares{in Millions}
Par Value per share

{Rs. In Millions)

(Rs. in Millions})

(Rs. In Millions)

(Nos. in Millions)
Rs

104.48
7.82

7422

g96.66
17.15
10.00

7422
16.80
10.00

Eaming Per Share - Diluted

Rs

5.64

4.42

Equity lavestment and loans to subsidiary company Ms Crocodile products private limited . )
The Compsny Is camying an equity investment of Rs. 63.74 Million (Previous Year Rs. 63.74 Million} in the above subsidiary
company. Though the networth of the subsidiary is eroding due fo losses of the past years, in the opinion of the management, the

invesiment made in the company is long and strafegic.




38 Employse bonefit plans
Defined contiibution plan

The Company mekes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans,
for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the*Company is required to sontribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to
fund the benefits. The'Company fecognised Rs.41.85 Millions {Year ended 31 March, 2014 Rs.24.19 Millions) for Provident Fund
contributions; Rs,18.83 Millions (Year ended 31 March, 2014 Rs.10.83 Millions) for Employse Stale Insurance Scheme
contributions in the Statement of Profit and-Loss. The contributions payable {0 these plans by the Company are at rates specified

in the rules of the schemes,

Defined benefit plan

The-Company offers gratulty employee benefit scheme to its employees. The following table sets out the funded status of the

Particutars-

defined benefit scheme and the amount recognised in the financial slatements:

Yoar endad 31st
March 2015

Year endead 31st
March 2014

Changes In present value of ohligation
Prasent value of obligation as on 1% April
Interast Cost

Current Service Cost

Bensfits paid

Actuarial Gain{ (L.oss) on Obligations
Present value of obligation as on 31* March

(Rs.in Millions)

18.85
1.35
9.36

¢3.05)
3.87

30.38

{Rs.in Millions)

15.45 |
1.50
6.26

(2.38)

{1.98)

18.85

Fair Value of Plan Assels as at 1" April
Expected refum on plan assets
Contributions made

Benefits paid

Actuarial Gain! (Loss) on plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 31* March

Change in Fair Value of Assets during the year onded 31* march

2.58
{0.10)
0.50
{3.05)
0.16

0.08

0.16
0.11
476

(2.38)

(0.07)
2.58

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised In the Balance sheet
Present value of obligation as on 31" March
Feir Value of Plan Assets as at 31" March
Funded Status Surplus/ideficit)
Unrecognised past Service Cost
Net Agset/(Liabllity) to be recognised in the Balance sheet

30.38

C.09
30.26

30.29

18.85
2.58
16.27

16.27

Expenses racognised during yoar ended March 31"
Current Service Cost

Interast Cost

Expacled retum on plan assets

Actuatial Gain/ (L.oss) on Obligations

Expensas to be recognised in statement of profit & loss

$.35
1.35
0.10
3.7
14,53

6.26
1.50
©.11)
(1.81)
5.74

Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate

Expected retum on plan assets
Rale of escalation In salary
Aftrition rate

Mortality rate

- 7.82%
8.00%
7.00%
5.00%
Indian Assured Lives
Morglity (2006-08)

9.18%
0.00%
7.00%
5.00%
indian Assured Lives
Maorality {2006-08)

The Discoun rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India Securities as at the Balance sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations. .

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the mﬁatlon. senigrity, promotion, increments and othe
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The entire fund is fully managed by life Insurance Corporation of [ndia.




38 Sagmoent Information
Primatry Segment by products .
TheCompany eperates primarily in a single business segment of Manufaciure and Sale of Saments

Secondary Segment by Seographical area based on location of customers

{Rs. In Million)

Goographical sagment

Year ended 31st
March 20185

Yoar ended 31st
March 2014

Segmant Revenue
[Cutside India
Within India

Segment Assets
|Outside India
Twvithin India

Capital expenditure

3,718.01.

1,099.10

626.67
4,846.14

108.28

3,303.02
1182.97

- 427.01
5,111.60

41.45

Details of lnasing arrangements

(Rs. In Miltions}

{i) Financa laase obligation relating to Vehicles

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2018

For the year ended
31st March 2014

later than five years

fater than five years

Reconciliation of minimum lease payments

|Future minimur lease payments for a period of
not fater than one year
ter than one year and not later than five years

ALess: Unmatured finance charges

Present value of miniraurm lease payments payable
not later than ohe year
later than one year and act {ater than five years

218
6.51

8.69

1.49

720

2.08
512

gnder laase

li) Operating lease arrangements

The ~Company has cancellable operating lease agreements for rental building space. As per the lease ferms an arnount of
Rs.22.23 Millions {for the year ended 31st March 2014 Rs.22.75 Millions} is charged to statement of Profit and Loss account. As
lessor the Company realized an income of Rs 24.15 Millions (for the year ended 31st March 2014 Rs.10.85 Millions) on properties}

The notes to accounts relating to CSR expenditure should also contain the following:

(@) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year Rs 1.43 Million

{Rs. In Millions)

(})} Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars

In Cash

Yet to be pald in
cash

Total

{ Constructicnfacquisition of any asset

0.00

{ii} On purpases other than (i} above

R
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

42 Related party transastion

Narne of Related Party

Key Managerial Porsonnel
P, Sundararajan
48.Lalha

Relatlve of Koy Managuriat Personnel
+3.Chendyran

1P Velusamy

P.Ashokaramam

“|Subsidiary

Crocodife Products Private Limited

S,P. Apparels UK (P) Uimited
{Enterprisos owned by relatives of Key
Managerial Parsonnal

; 8P Superfine Cotton Mills Private Limited
|Perumal Spinning Mills Private Limited
JEnterprises ownod by key Managerial

Personnsl
{Poomam Enterprises Privale Limited

S.P Textiles

18.P.Lifestyles

Nature af Relationship

Managing Direclor
1Executive Director (Wife of Mr.P.Sundararajan)

1Son of Mr.P.Sundararajan
Brother of Mr.P.Sundararajan
Brother of Mr.P.Sundararajan

Suhsidiary Company
Subskiiary Company

Enterprise over which relatives of Key Managerial
tParsonnel are able 10 exercise significant influence.

Enterprise over which relatives of Key Manageriat

{Personne! are able to exercise significant influence.

Enterprise over which Key Managedial Personnel are
able te exercise significant influence

{Enterprise over which Key Managerial Persennel are

able to exercise significant Influence

Enterprise over which Key Managerial Parsonnel are
able to exefcise significant influence

Nate:

Retated party relationships are as identified by the Management and refied upon by the Auditors.
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S. P, APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

43 Detalls of Darlvative Instruments(For Hadging)

A MTM on Forward Contracts
During the year the company has recognised Mark to Market gain on outstanding forward contracts amounting to Rs. 43.38

Millions.

‘Forward -Contracts entered Into by the company and outstanding as at 31st March 2015 for ‘hedging curvency related

B risks
i {Rs. in Millions)
As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014

Particuiars | Currency | Cross Currency | Buy/ Sell | Amount in FC{ Amount in INR| Amount in FC { Amount in INR
usp INR SELL 11.05 711.88 5.75 366.05
Forward TEUR INR {SELL . 1.23 97.41 0.31 26.79
Contracts GBP INR SELL 4,79 480.86 6.77 712.87
JUSD INR BUY - - -

44 Pravious year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to-correspond with the current yeat's classification
/ disclosure,

§ COMMBATORE
641018
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: Chartered Accountants
D&lOitte ’ : Sh:nmgm :m:n.ram.
41, Race Caurse,

Haskins & Sells Cotoc - 41018

Tel 1 +91{422) 4392801/802/603
Fax : +91 {422} 2223615

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR?S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF 8.P. APPARELS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of S.P. APPARELS
LIMITED-(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred 1o as “the Group™) comprising of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the

- Lonsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements™).

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financizl Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (heteinafter referred
to as “the Act”)that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consalidated
Tinancial performance and consolidated cash fiows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounti ng Standards specified under Section
- 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board
-of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenancs of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accurecy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Hotding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

~audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit repori
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. - :

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act, Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and planand
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror. In making those risk assessments,
the suditor considers internal finaricial conttol relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statethents that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
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- procedures that ace appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on-whether the Holding Company has an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such-controls. An audit also includes-evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the teasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opiniont on the consolidated
financial statements,

Opinion

I our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
s required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted it India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2045, and their
conselidated profit and their consotidated cash flows for the vear ended on that date. ’

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements tegarding the legal action by
the Holding Company against a bank. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be
determined and no provision for liability or any consequential adjustment that may result has been
made in the consolidated financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matters

(a) We did net audit the financial statements / financial information of Crocodile Products Private
Limited, subsidiary, whose financial statements / financial information reflect fotal assets of
Rs.19.10 Million as at 31st Match, 2015, total revenues of Rs.1.12 Million and net cash flows
amouating to Rs.0.16 Million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consotidated
financial statements. These financial statements / financial information have been.audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it refates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of
the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors,

(b) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of S.P. Apparels UK P Ld
subsidiary, whose financial statements / financial information reflect totat assets of Rs.0.93 Million
as at 31st March, 2013, total revenues of Rs.0.00 Miltion and net cash flows amounting te Rs.0.93
Million for the year ended on that date, asconsidered in theconsolidated financial statements. These
financial statements / financial information are unaudited and have been fumished to us by the
Management and our opinion an the consolidated financial statements, in so far és it relates to the
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amounts and disclosures tcluded in respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-

sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it velates to the aforesaid subsidiary. is

based solely on such unaudited financial statements / Tinancial information. In our opinion and

according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial
- statements /financiat information are not materia! 1o the-Group.

Our opirion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is.not modified in respect of the above matters with respect o our reliance on
the work done and the reporis of the other auditors and the financial statements / financial
information certified by the Management,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As tequired by the-Companies {Auditor’s Report) Onder, 2015 (“the Order™), issued by the
Cential ‘Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the
corments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company and subsidiary company, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matitets specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, 1o the extent applicable, that:

-(a} ‘We-have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of aur
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our andit of the aforesaid consolidated
financiat statements.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
bocks of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

{d) In our opinion, the-aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standacds specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

() On the basis of the wriften representations received from the directors of the Holding Coropany
as on 31st March, 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group
compauies, is disqualified as on 31% March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in termts of
Section 164 {2) of the Act,

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repott in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according 1o the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group- Refer Note 27(I) to the consolidated financial
statetnents,
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. ii. The Group did not have any material foresesable losses on long-{erm contracts inchuding
derivative confrasts.

Jit, There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required {0 be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding-Company and its subsidiary company.,

For Deloifte Haskins & Sells
Chariered Aceountants
Fiem Registration No. 00807

.R. Rajagopal

. Pariner
Avinashi, 28" August, 2015 _ . Membership No. 23418
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our.report of even date)

Car reporting on the Order includes one subsidiary company to which the Qrder is applicable, which
have been audited by other auditors and our report in respect of this entity is based solely on the

“report of the other auditor, to the extent considered applicable for reporting under the Order in the

case of the consolidated financial statements.

-In respect of one subsidiary company, which have been included in the consolidated financial

" - stateients based on unaudited financial statements / financial information of such entity provided

-

-to us by the Management, whilst in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations

given 1o us, reporting under-the Order is applicable in respect of this entity, since this entity are
unaudited, the possible effects of the same on our reporting under the Order in the case of these
consolidated financial statements has not been considered.

{0 In respect of the fixed assets of the Holding Company and subsidiary company:

{a) The respective entities have maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative-details and situzation of fixed assets.

- (b) The fixed assets were- physically verified during the year by the Management of the
respective entities in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our
opinion and the opinion of the other auditors, provides for physical verification of all the
fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to
us and the other auditors, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(ii)  Inrespect of the inventaries of the Holding Company and subsidiaty company :

(2} Asexplained fo us and the other auditor, the inventories were physically verified during the
year by the Management of the respective entities at reasonable intervals,

(b) In ouropinion and the opinion of the other auditor and aceording to the information and

explanations given fo us and the other auditor, the procedures of physical verification of

“inventories followed by the Management of the respective entities were reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the respective-entities and the nature of their business.

(¢) In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditor and according to the information and
explanations given to us and the other auditor, the respective entities have maintained
proper records of their inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company has
granted loans, to theextent included in the consolidated financial statements, unsecured, to
companies, firms or ofher parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The company has granted Joan to one subsidiary and the amount
outstanding during the year has been closed. Therefore, the provisions of clause (iii) (a) &
(b) of the order are not applicable to the company
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» -4iv} In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditor and according to the information znd
<xplanations given fo us and the other auditor, there is an adequate internal control system in the
Holding Company and subsidiary company commensurate with the size of the tespective entities

.and the nature of their business for the purchase of itventory and fixed assets and for the sale of
goods and services and during the.course of our and the othier auditor audit no major weaknesses in
such internal control system hizs been observed,

(V) According to the information and explanations given to us, the HoldingCompany and subsidiary
- company have not accepted any deposit during the year.

(vi) According fo the information and explanations given 1o us and the other aud itor, in our opinion
the Holding Company have, prime facie, made and maintained the prescribed cost records pursuant
to the Companies {Cost, Records and Audit} Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Ceniral
Government under subsection (1) of Section 148 of the-Companies Act, 2013, We have, however,
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to defermine whether they are accurate

+ or.complete. And in the opinion-of the other auditor for the subsidiary company, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under subsection (1) of Section 148
of the-Companies Act 2013.

{vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues of the
Holding Company and subsidiary company:

(a) The respective entitics have generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
« including Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service
- Tax, Custems Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues

applicable to the respective entities with the appropriate authorities.

(b} Dues of Income-fax, aggregating to Rs. 21.9¢ Miltion were due by Holding company for a
period of 7 to 12 months, There were no undisputed amounts payable by the respective entities in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in asrears as
at March 31, 2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax and Cess which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2015 on account of
disputes by the aforesaid entities are given below:

Nature of Dnes 1 Forum where Dispute Is | Aggregate Amount Involved
Pending (Rs.in Million)

Income tax - CIT Appeals (I} 1 195.96

VAT DC (Appeals) 5.02

Service tax CCE Appeals 0.54
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(d)There are no amounts that are due to be transferted by the aforesaid entities to the nvestor
Education and ProtectionFund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the‘Companies Act,
1956 (1 of 1956} and Rules made thereunder,

{viii) The Group does not have cansolidated accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and
-the Group have not incuired cash-losses on a consolidated basis during the financial year covered
by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year,

Rix) In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditors and according fo the information and
explanations given to us and the other auditors, as at the balance sheet date, there were defay in the
repayment of dues 1o banks aggregating to Rs.60 Miltion by the Holding -Company and the
subsidiary company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Holding-Company
and subsidiary company have not issued any debentures.

{x) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company and subsidiary
company have not given guarantees for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions

“{xi} In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditor and according to the information znd
explanations given to us and the other auditors, the term loans have been applied by the Holding
“Company during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained, other than temporary
deployment pending application, and that the subsidiary company has not obtained any term loans
during the year

(xi1) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the other auditor, no fraud by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company and no material
fraud on the Holding Company and its subsidiary company has been noticed or reported during the
year,

For Deloitte Haskias & Sells
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No. 0080728

C.R. Rajagopal
Partrer
Avinashi, 28" August, 2015 Membership No. 23418




S.P. APPARELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3187 MARCH 20t5

(Rs. n Millions}

Fariteulats

§ As at 31st March

2015

TEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
“sharcholders’ funds

(a} Share capRal ©

{b) Reserves and surplus

deiuority Intarest

1 Non-cuniant flabllities
(=) bong-term borowings
{b} Deferved tax abilities {net)

urrent lakilities

(@) Sherl-term borrowings
(l}) Trade payatles

{c} Other current Rabilities
(d} Short-teem provisions

JASSETS
Non-turrent assets -
(a) Fixed assefs .
(i) Tengible assets
{ii} Intengible assels
{ifi) Capital work-In-progress

1) Goodwill-on consolldation
{¢) Nor-cugrent investments
{e) Langterm loans and advances

TCurrent assats
. {a) Current Investments
(b) Inveniotias
(<) Trade recelvables
{d) Cash scd cash equivalents
{e) Short-erm loans and advances
{f} Ofher cument assets

statements

See accompanylng notes forming part of the consolidated financial

TOTAL

440,49
751.70

1,192.19

(67.52)

728.23
31866

1,044.89

1.565.89
1,214.80
287.28
102.79

317076

£,350.32

2,680.36
15.08

2,695.42
5868
4.56
385.53

3,144.19

319
1,07342
74204
65.48
31479
261

2208.13

§,350.32

I terms of our report attached.
Fer Deloitte Haskdns & Sells

Place : Avinasht

Dala:_lg?gfa.nrs

For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors

P

V.Ba!a}l\:%

Chief Financial Officer




S. P, APPARELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3181 MARCH 2015

{Rs. In Milliohs}
i YNote No.j For the year ended
Pasticulars ] st March 2015

REVENUE - - _
1 1 Revenue frons operations {grass} . 8 4784.99
Aess: Excica duty -

Reverue from operations {nat) i ' 4,184.99

] 2 JOthet income’ . ] 3 7.94

3 votal reveanué (142)
4 ;
{a)-Cost ol= maderials consumed
(b} Purchases of stock-in-frads {iratied goods)

G in Inventories of finished goeds, wotk<n-progress
o
E (d} Employee benefks expense

{e} Finance cosls

.{f} Depreciation and amoitization expense
-{g} Other expenses .

:Toé[expensas
'Pmﬁtbd'o;etax 34

JTax expensal {benefit):

{a}-Curent tax expense

‘{b} {Less): MAT credit

{c} Short 1 (Exoess) provision for 1ax relating to prior years
“{d) Net current 1ax expense .

1 {e)Peferred Tax

INet tax expense { (benefit)

17 Proﬁ:a&ertz.;tbefamshareofnﬁnoﬁjyimmt (-6}

|8 )(A&;):Sttateofpmfnaudb&auem Minority inferest

9 iProfit for the year aitributabie to the slmrehalders of the Company (7«
.

18 {Eamings per share (of Rs 10i- each)

{s)Baskc

{biDituted

ZSee nccorgpany!ng notes forming patt of the consolidated financial

interms of our report Btiached.
For Dalolite Haskins & Setls For and on behalf of the Bcard of Dlrettors

Chartered Accountants ; . ; ‘{

i

AR g St
S.Latha
Executive Director




S, P. APPARELS LIMITED

GONSOLIDATEDR CASH FLOW STATEMENY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

(Rs.In Hillions)

. Particulars

For the year ended 31st
March 261¢

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
$orofit before tax, sham of profit of minarity klevast
Degraciation and amorbization éxpenss

(Profit} foss on sale of assels |

Bad debis written off

Provision for doubtiid trade rweuvab!ea

Finance cosis

intarest income

Uinceatised axchange {gainjloss

Pravision for MTI (gain)loss on forward contracts
Op.ming pwﬁ-ts hafore w-ldngupitalctumes

Adjusirnonts for {Increasel / decrease k1 oparaling assels:
(nventaries

Trade receivables M

Loans and advancesiCurem assets

Aacﬁuslmads fa-inu'easef(decraase} I apereting ¥abilites:
Trage payables/Other current iabitiiesfrovisions

{cash Ganerated from Opsratians
Net incoma tax (paid) f refunds
et cash flow from £ {used In) eperating ectivities

8, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
ICapital expenditure on fixed assets, Including capital advances
JProceeds fram sale of fixed assets
Bank deposits not considerad as.cash equivatents
Punchase of long tetmn lavestments « Otbers
Proceeds from aake of kong torm lovesimeants
Interest recalved - Bank deposits -

Net cash fiow from f{used in) investing actheitics
C. CASH FLOW FROR FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceedsi{repayment} of long term borowings
ﬁ'oceedsf(mpavmem) of short term borrowings
Finance custs

Nt cash flow from £ {usad in} !Inandng activities

et lacreasa f (decresse) in Cash and tash equivalonts
and cash egquivalents at thebeginning of the year
fect qéfal;mange differences on restatement of foralgn currency Casti and cosh
VE .
h and cash aquivalents at the endd of the year

TreAz
(197.02)
{1434}

163.84

BG5.45
{29.53}

835,92

(156 24)
2181
80.73
{4.56)
3.89
9.84

(58.186)

. (323.05)
U -5

{289.10)
{160.31)

£30
35.83

{0.02)

4141

) Cash on hand
b) Balancas with banks
in curren{ aveount .

Exy« and cash equivalents mm and of the year comptises of
a

ps

189« mompanu‘ng riotes forming patt of the wmﬁdaﬁh financial statamey

657

24.54

in 1ermns of our report attached,
1For Baloitte Haskins & Sclls

w“.—\,

Fot and on bahatf of the E;m?efbiredm

P.Sundararajan
ing Diractor

X

Chlef Financial Officer

et
\.-I';, e
<l

IR
-

K



S. P, APPARELS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

1. Basis of Consolidation and Significant Accounting Policies

1.1.1 Basis of Accounting and preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial stalements of the Company and its subsidiaries {together the "Group’) have been
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (indian GAAP) to comply
with the Accouniing Standards. specifled under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act) f
-Companies Act, 1956 ("the 1956 Act"), as applicable. The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared
. on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.

1.1.2 Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to S, Appareis Limited {the ‘Company’) ts subsidiary companies.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same
reporting date as that -of the Company i.e., 31 March, 2015. These have been consolidated based on {atest
available financial statements.

The financlal statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-bydine
basis by adding together like itetns of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group
balances, Intra-group transactions and resulting unrealised profits or fosses, unless cost cannot be recovered.

The excess of cost to the Group of lfs investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of equity of the
subsidiary companies, at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary companies were made, is
recognised as ‘Goodwill’ being an asset in the consolidated financiat statements and is tested for impairment on
annual basls. On the other hand, where the share of equity in the subsidiary companies as on the date of
investment Is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, il is recognised as *Capital Reserve' and shown
under the head ‘Reserves & Surplus', in the consolidated financial statements. The 'Goodwill' / ‘Capital Reserve'
fs determined separately for each subsidiary company and such amounts are not set off between different
entitles.

Minority Interest in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount of equity attributable 1o
the minarity shareholders at the date on which investments in the subsidiary companies were made and furlher
movements in their share in the equiy, subsequent to the dates of investmants. Net profit / loss for the year of
the subsidiaries atiributable to minority interest is idertified and adjusted against the profit after tax of the Group
in order to arrive at the income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

Goodwill arising on donsoﬁdation is not smortised but tested for impairment.

Following subsidiary companies have been considered in the preparation oi‘ the consolidated financial
staiements:

Name of the entity 1 Relationship  § Country of Ownership ., % of Holding and
’ Incerporation | held by voting power gither
directly through
subsidiary as at 31
March, 2015

1 Grocodile Praducts Private Limited Subsidiary India S.P.Apparels 70%
- . Limited ;

§.P. Apparels UK (P} Limlted Subsldiary UK S.P.Apparels

Limited




The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events In similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible in the same manner as the
Company's separate financial statements.

1.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financia! statements In conformity with Indian ‘GAAP requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
{including contingent liabilities) and the reported Income and expenses during the year. The Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statemients are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual resuls and the. estimates are
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materiaise.

1.3 Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed Assels are stated as cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of assets comprises of purchase price
and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets o working conditions Tor its intended use including borrowing
cost and incidental expenditure during construction incurred up o the date oi commissioning.

Capital work in progress includes building under construction, construction expenditure incurred thereon and
interest on the funds deployed.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assels of the company and its India subsidiaries is provided under straigh{ {ine
method based on useful life prescribed in Schedule — I of the CTompanies Act, 2013 Depreciation on tangible
fixed assets has been provided on the siralghtline method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following -calegories of assets held by the Company, in whose
case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature
of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.:

‘General Plant & Machinery 20 years
Lomputers & Servers B years
Bulldings - others 30 years
Cffice Equipments 10 years
Vehicles Car 10 years
~ Vehicles Others - B years
Leasehold land amortised over the duration of the lease
1.4 Investments

Long term investments are valued at cost, less provision for diminution, other than temporary.in the value of
such investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and market value,

1.5 Inventories

Raw Maleriafs, Stores, consumables and packing materials are valued at cost, Work in Progress Is valued at
cost and includes production ovethezds as estimated by Management. Finished goods are valued under
absorption cost basis at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for cbsolescence and ofher losses
wherever consldered necessary. Fabric waste is valued at net realisable valus.

1.6 Revenue Recognition and Other income

Revenue from sales are recognised net of returns, rebates and frade discounts, when risk and rewards of
ownership of the goods are fransferred to the customer, which generally coincides with dispatch of goads from
factory.

Export incentives comprising mainly of duty drawback are recognised as revenue on accrual basis, wherever
cettainty of receipts and value thereof are known.




Revenue from job work undertaken is recognised on delivering the goods fo the customer on <completion of the
work.

Interest income is accounted on accrual basis. Dividend income is accounted for when the right {o receive the
income is established.

1.7 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Transaction in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of fransaction.
Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the year end exchange rate. Resultant gains or
losses are recognised in the consclidated statement of profit and loss.

The accounting standard AS 11{Revised 2003) on the “Effects of-Changes in foreign exchange rafes" which was
amended with effect from April 1, 2004 provides guidance on accounting of forward -contracts. The Instifute of
Chariered Accountants of India has clarified that AS 11 (Revised) is not applicable to the forward contracts
which are for hedging highly probable forecasted transactions.

The-Group has entered in to forward contracts which are designated as hedge of tighly probzble forecasted
transactions. The <Gainflosses of forward contracts designated as highly probable forecasted transactions are °
recogrised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass in the period in which the forecasted fransactions is
expected to oceur,

Non-integral foreign operations:
i) Transactions of non-integral foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

i) All assets and lisbilities of non-integral foreign operations are translated at the year-end rates.

The exchange differences on translation of batances refating to non-integral foreign operations are
accumulated it & "Foreign currency translation reserve” until disposal of the operation, in which case
the accumulated balance in "Foreigh currency translation reserve" is recognised as income {
expense in the same period in which the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

1.8 Employee benefits

Short term
Short term employee benefits are charges off at the undiscounted amount in the vear in which the related
service is rendered.

Long ferm
Post retirement benefits comprises of Provident Fund and Gratuity which are accounted as follows:
{. Provident Fund

This is a defined contribution plan,and contributions made to the fund are charged to-Consolidated statement of
Profit and loss. The entities in the Group has no further obligations for future provident fund benefits other than
monthly contributions. ,

l. Gratuity — Funded

This is a defined benefit plan. The enfities in the Group makes annual contribution to a gratuity fund
administered by LIC. The liablifity Js determined based on the actuarial valuation using projected unil credit
methad. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in consolidatedstatement of profit and loss for the
period which they occur. The retirement Benefit obligation recognised in the Consolidated Balance sheet
represents the prasent value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for un-recognised past service cost.




ill. Leavefncashment

There is no scheme for encastiment of un-availed ieave on retirement. {eave encashment of employess are
paid annually and provision is made on accrual basis.

1.8 Taxes on Income
Provision for tax includes provision for current income tax, deferred tax and wealth tax.

Deferred {ax is recognised for all fiming differences arising between taxable incomes and accounting income at
tax rates and the tax laws enacled or substantively enacted as at the reporting dete. Deferred tax assets arising
from Bming differences. and enabsorbed fosses are recognised only where there is a virtual cetiainty that
deferred tax assefs can be realised against future taxable profits. The Group offsels deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities, and advance incoms tax and provision for tax, if it has a legally enforceable right and
these relate to faxes in income levies by the same governing taxation faws.

Gurrent tax is defermined on the basis of-4axable income and tax credits computed for each of the entities in the
Group in accordance with the-applicable tax rates and the Jprovisions of applicable tax taws of the respective
Jurisdictions where the enlities ars located.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance to the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in
the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset ¥ there is convincing-evidence that
the entity will pay normal tax during the specified period. Accordingly, MAT credit is recognised as an asset in
the Consolidated Balance sheet when it is probable that the fulure economic benefit associated with # will fiow to
the entity and the asset-can be measured reliably.

1.10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include software licenses, trademarks, patents and copy-rights. Software licenses are
amortized-over a period of five years.- Trademarks, patents and copyrights would be amortized on straight line
basis over their expected useful lives.

1.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly atfributable fo the. acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are
capltalized (net of TUF subsidy) till the month in which asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs
are fecognised as an expenss in the petiod in which these are incurred.

1.12 Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidles from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant/
subsidy will be recelved and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to
an expense itemit-Is recoghised as income over the periods necessary to match them on a systemalic basis to
the costs,which is intended to compensate. When the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted
in arriving at the-carrying amount of the refaled asset.

1.13 Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviswed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any

indication of impairment. If any indication exists, the assets are recoverable amount is estimated, An Impairment
toss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

1.14 Leases

Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the -Graup subsiantially all the risks and rewards ncidental to
ownérship of the leased item,are capltalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum
lease payments al the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assels.




Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the leased
term, are classified as operafing leases, Operating lease payments are recognised as as expense item in the
Lonsolidated statement of profit and {oss on a straight line basis over the lease ferm.

1.15 Earnings per share

The eamings considered in ascertaining the Group's €PS comprise the net profit attributable to -equity
shareholders after tax-and includes the post tax effect of any extracrdinary item. The number of shares used in
computing the basic EPS is the weighled average number of shares cutstanding during the year. The number of
shares used in computing diluted EPS comprises of weighted average shares considered for deriving basic EPS,
and alse the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all
ditutive potential equity shares,

1.16 Provisions and cantingencies

A provision is recognised when the Group has'a present obligation as a result of the past event and K is probable
that an outiiow of resources will be required to seftle the obligation, in respect of which a relizbls estimate can be
made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
~Contingent assels and liabifities are not recognised, however contingent liabllities are disciosed in the notes,

41.17 Cash and cash equivalents {for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are shori-term balances (with
an ariginal maturity of three months or less from the date of ecquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.18 Cash flow statement

-Cash flow statement has been prepared in accardance with the indirett method prescribed in Accounting
Standard 3 -Cash flow Statement, whereby profit 7 {loss) before extracrdinary items and tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipis or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the ‘Group are segregated based
on the available information.

1.19 Segment reporting

The Croup identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the
internal organisation and management structure, The operaling segmenis are the segments for which separate
financial information Is available and for which operating profit / toss amounts are evaluated regularly by the
executive Management in declding how o allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Group.
Segment revenua, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified fo segments
on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounied on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on
market / fair value factors.

Revenue, experses, assets and liabliities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocable fo
segrents on reasonable basls have been included under 'unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liablities’.
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S. P, APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of tha consolidated financial statemardts

NOTE 2 EHARE CAFITAL

——ps o %t March 2095
Perticulers Number of shevos | o o griifione

}(’a} Authgrised - ’ k

Equity stares of Rs, 10/ each with voting rigtits 2.00.00,000 00
0% Redoemable peeference shares of Rs.105- each 2,00,00,000 260.00
[8 % Fulty Convestibie pref: shares of Rs.10/- eath — Camplisery 72.50,000 72.50
4,72,90,000 A472.650

(b} fssuad ) [

Eguity shares of Rs. 10/~ sach with voting rights 1,88.00,000
1% Redeemable prefecence shanes of Rs, 10~ each ] 2.00,00,000
16 % Fully Convanibie prefargnce shans of Rs. {04 sach —~ Compmdsory J2.50,0001
4.40.50,000,

) Subscribed and Uy pad Up ;
= quity shares of Re. 10/ axch wih voting rights 1,68,00,000
10% Redesmable preferarice shares of 5,10/ gach 2,00.00,000
% Fuly Convertible preferance shares of Rs.100- each— Compulsory ] 7249454

i 440,489,454
g Tota: $ AT 43454

{Notex

i Tatms & Conditton of Equity shares
e Company has gnly ene class of equity shares baving a per tace welue of Rs.10 par ehacs, Each holder of equily shares b entitied to one vole per share. The Company]
decteres and pays dividend & Indian Rugees, The Dividend, if any, proposed by the Beard of Directers bas to be approved by she shareholdens in the Aahual General Meeting.

b tha evertt of bquidation of the Company; the hokders of tha equity shares il be entisd to rectiva remalring assate of fia cOmpaty, after sating the dues of Kofsrential and
lather creditors as per priotly, The distrioufion wifi b2 ka proportion £ T fumber of equity shares held by the shareholdets.

§ &GORTNTONR R 1UX KEUeaiRTH
The Campany has convarted a part of the unsetued foany piven by the dkectams us Redaematie Praferance shares
The coupon ras is 10%; .
The peded of cedemption is 10 yaars of 25 allowed ty the DitecTo SUDJEC 10 Kquidhy:
The preference ahares e of cumidative i respact of dividend payous;
The redemption shal be out of accumutated profits or out of fresh dseue of shates.

o8

Com : cunvertitie ito equlty shares of Rs 10/~ each st a price 10-{iiuding a premium of Rs 200/} to M/s Ewro Asla Agencies
Limttexd, Hongkong, aftec expity of 36 months from the due date(24t July 2013) but before exdiry of 60 mondhs.

Iv} Datalls of shates hald by each sharsho{dar hakiing mora than 5% shares:

Az at 31st March 2015
Particulase % of holding In

that ctaes of
No of Shures held shares

2) Equity Shares with vating rights
P.Sundmarajen . 1,19,80,000 7131%
S.atha 30,032,000 17.868%
NVLIM - Indfa Fund - 184,000 10.21%)

1} 10 % Radeemabls preferance shares
P.Suidarsraish - 1.00,00,000 $0.00%)|
S.Ldtha ‘ 1,00,00,600 50,00%]

) 6 % Fuly convertible preference shares - Comprisory
Mis. Euro Asia Agsncies Ltd, Hong Kong 1248454 100.00%]

Reconlilation of the number of wnd amount sutstanding ot the beginn ot the end of the :
Particulars Opanting Balance {WMovement duringt  Closing Balacs

Uity Stores with voung ights .

[Year erded 31 March, 2016
= Number of ghares
= AU (Rs. 10 wach) {Rs, In Milions)

[Reemanie preforance stares,

¥ear andad 31 March, 2015 )
» Numyer of shares 2,000,000
- Afnowrtt (Rs. 10 sachy {Rs. I Miioos) 200,00

Fully converfible pref shares « Compusory

[Year ended 31 Mateh, 2015
« Number of shares
- Amourt, (Rs. 10 each) (Ry. In #mFons)

4
)

.«
‘.
=

g N .{_‘\
fa e
[i3 1 comaaroas )
o\ sdIcie /@
&
< rc.@y

£ ar




-8, P. APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statarents

NOTE 3 RESERVES & SURPLUS

iRs. ln Miilions)

Particutars

; As at 31st March 2045

Ka) Securties premium account
Opering balance
Less : Utilized during the year

33319

Closing batanse
by Foreign currency transtation reserve

(e} Sumpius 7 {Defidt) in-Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Qpening balance ]
Less: Depreciation on transition to Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013 6n ]

t;gigilgg)fmed assets with nil remalning useful ife (Net of deferred Tax} {Refer
8

Add: Profit for the year
Lansolidation adjusiment

Less: Dividends proposed to be distributed fo preference shareholders
{Rs.0.80/- per shara)

Less: Tax on dividend

B

333.19

(0.02)

270.88
328

86.06]
7269
652

130

Clasing bafatice

418.53

Total

751.70

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

{Re. In Milliohs)

Particutars

| As at 31st March 2015

fa) Termloans

‘From banks
Securad

(b} Loans and advances from related parties (Refer Note 38)
Unsecured

(¢ ) Long-term malurities of finance lease obligations {Refer Note 34)
Secured

(d) Other oans and advances -
Unsecured

0.20;

728.23

- Unsecurad loan from promoters are repayable after two years

purchase.
. The Campany has not defaulted In repayment of duss

- F;ar Term loans, the first c'l'iarge on fixed assets is given 1o mspe@dve'b%}nks. Seot.:md cha‘nge on the curent
Jassets been extended fo the banks whera ever possible. Where ever the first charge on the fixed assels are
not provided to banks the promoters have provided their properiies anid personal guarantes as security.

- Secured Temn Loans from banks are repayatile Monthly / Quarterdy over a petiod of 7 Years.

- Finance Lease repayable in less than § yeacs, secured by Hypothecation of asset purchased undsr hire

For the cument maturities of long termn borowings refer itemns in Nofe 7 Cther Current Uiabilities.
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NOTE 5§ SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

{Rs. In Milllons

Particulars

| As at 315t March 2015

K&} Loans repayable on demand
From banks
Secured

(b} Otfrer [vans and advances
Unsecured

1,561.69°

420

Tota

1,565.89

jassets of the conipany In favour of lending banks on paripassu basis.
-+ The Company has not defaufted in repayment of dues

Working Capltal loans are secured by first charge on the current assels of and second cfzarge on the fixed

| NOTE 8 TRADE PAYABLES

_(Re, in Millions)

| As at 31st March 2015

Trade payables:
Ciher than Acceptances

1,214.80°

Total]

1.214.80

NOTE 7 QTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

{Re. In 8lllions)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2015 |

(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note 4)

(b} Current maturities of finance lease obligations (Refer Note 4)
(c) Interest accrued but not due on borrawings

Hd) Interest accrued and due on borrowiogs

1o} Other payables B

(i) Statutory remitiances

{it} Payables on purchase of fixed assets

{ili) Trade f security deposits received

(i} Advande from customers

233.09
1.52
0.541

11.47

1825
1712
3.95
1.34

Yotal}

20728

NOTE 8 _SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

{Rs. In Milllons)

Paticulars

As at 31st March 2015

(a) Provision for employes bensfits:

Provision for gratuity {net) (Refer Note 32)

(b) Proviston ~ Others:

(i) Provision for tax ‘{(net of advance tax Rs. 34.81 Millions)

{ii) Provsion for praposed preference dividend
(it) Provision for fax on praposed preference dividend

PR AR
e \{u-‘ﬁ :,'3.:5\\‘:.

AF0
<
T

4 o
L LERRTRREY
12
/ &

&




oF

Wis

Sed
[2: {08 i

R v
SHOZ HIUYI

1 1V FoNeTvd

13474

57’}

Loy

ONYIVD O VAN

SL0THOUVA I AV 5V [S1995V 30 WEOSI0| §507 OV LH0dd

40 ININILVLS N}
FVIvd S 1dNn:

ANINASNICY
NOsNIL

_hw—..b_ﬁ( QIARCTZY

vwevasran oy
UVIA 2HL B0

RQILVSLLUQ Y

Y

X274

Wi

Si'ov

shoy

YRR | IKEIR

{uogeptosuos Lo Bushie neg J40)) (WRCOEN

SI0Z U4V L0 LV &Y

FoNeva

SHT HIUYR ¢
IV S AINNIYE

¥I0Z AV 10

1V SY ADNYTIVE

© SUFINOILYVY

NI079 I3N

YT {aoRI Bl wu)

. i ausieids —
NOILVIGIYLEC AIVINHNIIY
e e

AO01H SSOHD

"~

~T

T

S13SSY ANEIDNYLINI BE ALOK

SUDIIY $6°8'5H M90S VAN Due SUOILIN 2§ 'SY NO0ID $50.0 Liv u0Gebixio ases suusiy Japun peseyind siesse sepiv] {,)

e

"

60

99
s

EELE0Y

F D)

R

5626

s

~

S10Z HOUVH 1L LY BY 1S1I5SY 40 WS0JISIY]
HONYTYE - RO QILVHINE.

3 . -

¥o0Td J3K

R 1T+

150

€T

¢ MR § 1 24

80
86T
BoYL
[24:2:}

(L:¥id

40

05°582

(4]

2ok
g
qareL
g6'Ly
12581
26'88
sV'S01T
a0°d6¢'k
€0'EL

ey

0¢

EE_

serddon

FWOWdNhS 3a0)

SURAGRYT qa

(.} sapiyeA

SoNNY § sy

BUOBEIIISU IO

Rsunsep 3 weld

Bupng)

{92 910N 330) pioyaseaT] - puey)

Pioyea1g - pu)

$807 ANY L30Yd
40 INSNILVLS NI
JONVIVE SNIUNS
ISRV 0JQH0IIY
LNTHLSNNTY

aare b s it et st it

ViG3Ud39 GIIINKADOY * > Ve
L3NG - CREORE o B i -

HNOILSHVALL

HVAA L ¥Od
~ NOUNIDIHd3IQ

PLIZ TNV 0 LY &Y
YORVYIYG

" SH0Z HOHVHI AR
© ¥ SY IONYIVE

SUVIRDILLYEYS

1355V THEIONV.L Ve 310N

{wuoywolsy) *

T

S 40 2ed Bt $0ION
Q3LIAN §13HVLdY ¢ 8




5. P, APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consdlidated financta! statements

NOTE 16 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS ~ {Rs. InMiltlons}
| ‘ ' T As af 315t March 2015

. -

Barticulars

Unquoted

IOTHER INVESTMENTS
¥a) Investment In Equity Instruments - Others

- (1} 38,480 shares of Rs. 10 f-each fully pald up in-Gayathri
Sustainable Energies Private Limited

1- figf.'zo.éﬂ(} shares of Rs. 10 /~cach fully paid up in ANGS P

B L Total

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Rs. In Millions)

“Particulars 1As at 318t March 2018
] Uasecured and considered good 3
Ha)Capital advances ) . 24,25

16} Secudty deposits

(c) MAT credit entilement

A(d) Balances with government authorities
i} VAT credit receivable
(il) Income Tax Recelvable

(f) Others

e} Other loans and advances (Refer Note 28)

285.53

12 CURRENT INVESTMENTS . {Re. \In Millions)
As at 31st March 2015

. Particulars

O‘iher wmmt Investments
(At lower of cost atd market value unless otherwise stated) . Unquoted

sy Investment in mutual funds
° Mitestone Real estate fund




$. P, APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consalldated financial statemonts

{Rs. In Millions)

NOTE 13 INVENTORIES

- Particulars

s

1 As at 3ist Barch 2015

Atlowerof cost and net ragliable value)

{{a) Raw materjals

-{b) Workn-progress

o) Finished goads {other than those acquired for trading)
Hd} StockeIn-trade (acquired for trading}

(e} Stores and Consumables -

A

486.46
37040

44.48
© BT
105,27

1,073,12

Betails of Inventories of Work-in-progress
Ha}Garment .
1) varm

-

34458
25354

370.1¢

NOTE 14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

{Rs. In Milfiotisj

. Parficulars

As 2t 31st March 2015

{the date they wera dus for payment

Unsecured, considesed good
Doubifut

Less: Provision for douttfid trade receivablss

[Other Trade receivebles
Unsecured, censidered good

Trade recelvables outstanding for & period exceeding six months Homm




NOTE 1§ GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

{Rs. In Millions}

Particulars

1 As at 395t March 2015

4

A Cash and cash equivalents (as per AS 3 Gash Flow Staements)

{a)Cash on hand
() Balances with banks
, Ir cument accounts

6.87

34.54

Tetal ~ Cash and cash equivalents{as per AS 3 Cash Flow/
- Statements) {A)

41.11]

3. Other bank balancas
) In 2armarked accounts-

- Balances held-as margin money or security against
borrowings

27.37

Totai - Other bank batances ()

27.37

Tofal - Cash and cash equivalents {A+5)

68.48,

NOTE 16 _SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

{Rs, In Miilione)

- Partieulars

As at 31st March 2015

(8} Loens and advances to related parfes (Refer Note 36}

b} Loans and advances to employees

(d) Batances with govemment authorities

Unsecured, canskiered good

(c}Plr'epaid axpenses

(1) Export Incentives Recelvables
() VAT credit raceivable ,

{iif} Terminat excise duty receivable
{iv) TUF recelvable

(¢) Others
{i) Advance to suppliers
{ii} Qthers

0,7¢

1.07

8.68

148.39]
38.52
0.16
28,03

44.69
43.57

314.73

NOTE 17. CTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Rs. In Millions}

Partlculars

As at 31st March 2015

Ascruals .
Interest acerued on Bank deposits -

3,61

TOTAL

3.61




8. £, APFARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolldated financiat statements

Rs. In Millions)

NOTE 18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars

Forthe year ended
3=t March 2015

Ha) Sate of Products (Refer Note (i} batow)

Kb} Sale of Services {Refer Note (1} balow)

¢} Other Operating Revenues {Refer Nota (i betow)
Revenue from operations {Gross)

Less:.Excise Duty

4.179.68
20821
307.10

5,784.58

4,784.99

ale of Pmducts.mmprises:
Manufactured Gonds
1Gaments

Yarn

Traded Goods
Trem

Fabric

Catfon Waste
Garments

(}ySals of Services comprises:
Oyelng charges ] X
|Embroidery charges

Printing charges :
{0thers -

(iﬁ)lofher Operating Revenues comprisas:
Duty Draw Back and other Export Incentives
Sale of Serap .

Yother than considered as finance cost)

3.774.651
172.28

3,846.95

0.73]
£5.06
402
130.12

Net gainf{loss) on foreign currency transacions and franststions

232.73

200,79
2.81;
3.28]
1.32

208.21

3722
058

£59.33

397.10

NOTE 19 OTHER INCOME

{Rs. In Millions)

Parflculars

For the year endad
31st March 2015

(@) Interest Income on bank dapecits

such ihcome}{Refer Note (i) below)

) Other non-operating lncome (net of expenses directiy attributable

Total

§.20

2.14

734

Other ion-operating Income comprises:
Rential income

Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net)

Lab testing charges

]Mlscellaneous Income

a.01
.05
0.29
0.79

214
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S. P. APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

{Rs. In Millions)

NOTE 26 COST OF MATERIALS-CONSUMED

Farticulara

% Forthe year endad
1 3ist March 2015

1Opening Stock
{Add: Purchases

JLess: Tlosing Stack

745.88
1,811.59
2,557.47

601.43

1,856.04

Purchases comprises:

Yam

Jrabric

IAccessaries

iCotton

JChetmical & Dyes

Packdng Materials, $tores &-Consumables

473.43
37156
207.43
169.23
213.79
37645

1.811.5¢

{R=. In Millions)

NOTE 21 PURCHASES OF STOCKAN-TRADE{TRADED GODDS)

Particilars

1 Forthe year onded
31st March 2015

JGamients

71.48

7148

NOTE 22 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WiP AND

STOCK-IN-TRADE

,_{Re. In Miltions)

 Particulars

For the year endeq
31st March 2015

tories
IFinished goods
[Work-n-progress
1Stock4ndrade

[Net (incraase) { decrease

44,48

37010,
§7.11

471,60

4875
413.36]
4465

506.66

34.97

NOTE 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

{Rs. I Millionis)

Particulars

| Forthe year ended 1
33ot Mareh 2615

Salarfes & wages
1Contribution to provident & other funds (Refer Note 32)
Staff welfsra supaises

PN

i dizsers” MEDY

826.82
7548
121911
1,024,601




NOTE 24 FINANCE GOSTS

{Rs. in Millions)

Parficuiars

For the yearended |
st March 2045

¥a} Interest expense on:
(i} Barrowings R
{ii} Others ~ [aterest & bank charges

i(b) Net{Galny Loss o foreign cuarency transactions and transiations

273.15]
36.58

.87

Total]

311.60

NOTE 25 OTHER EXPENSES

{Rs. in Millions}

For the year ended :
31st March 2015

: Particulars
JPower & Fuel )
;Repairs & Maintenance - Bullding
[Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery
“|Repairs & Maintenance - Others
[Fabrieation Charges

I0ther Manufacluring Expenses

[Fayments to Auditors{Refer Note {i) below}
Insurance

JLegat & Professional Charges

{Printing and stationecy s
Lommunication ’
E;veiling and conveyance

iFaclory lease rent (Refer Note,34}

Tem (Refer Note. 34)

Rates and taxes

Royaity
fDonation

Hure on Comporate Sodial Responsibllity {Refer Note 35)

IManagerial remuneration (Refer Note 36)
Qirector sitting fees
Commission
Freight and forwarding
Discount and allowance
Business pramotion
Bad Debts written off
Provisions for doubtfil trade receivables
Provisions for MTV (Gain)lLass on forward contracts
Miscellanous expernses .

186,38
23.90
73,35
23.92/
54.19]

361.05

1.87
4.82
.10
1051
383
26.98
3z
22.18
11.56
5.34
0.12
0.54
1200
0.10
1.84
83.67
12.68
2450
1.77
0.40

(22.74)

13.10

950,32

{i} Payment to suditors comprises:
1 As auditors - statutery audit (including senvice tax)
For taxation matters
For other sendces
Reimbursement of expenses

145
.18
33

0.01

197




S. PLAPPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

25 Additional information to the consalidated financial statements

The Company's building are located on own land and lease own fands. The promoter director has executed tease
deeds in favour of the company In respest of land measuring 34.37 acres4or a period of 29 years. Of the 34.37 acres,
the lease deed has been registered in respect of 28.93 acres and for the balance 5.44 acres registration semains to be

The Company’s pmcessing division bullding at Parundueal is focatad ontease tiold land taken from SIPCOT fura
period of 89 years. The company had acquired feasehold rights for land from SIPCOT which eatiier stood in the name
of Mis. Poomam Beverages Pvi Lid for remalning period of 85 years. The Building was laken oo lease form Mis.
Poomam Beverages Pt L.ud.

27 Contingent liabllitles and commitments ffo the extent not provided for) 4Rs. #a Riliions}
’ Particulars ) S’
- 145 gt 815t March 201

¥} Cortingent liabiiities i : i
J0utstanding import tetter of credit : ] -

Outstanding inland lefier of aredit T 218.29]

{0utstanding expart obligatidns for €PCG ficense ] 290.83

jincome fax demand — disputed 3
1- 200607 i * 1 173.38
1. 200810 : . 29.58

service tar demand - disputed
-2008-05t 2012~ 13, 1 0.54

VAT demtand - disputed
- 200607 to 201112

TFurther Cash fiaws It respect of the above matiers are determinabie only on Feceipt of
judgements / decisions pending at various forums / authorities.

i} Commitments

Cstimated amount 'of Conlracts remaiing to be executed on the Capital Accounts {Tangible)
land not provided for (Net of Advanices) as confirmed by the management. 0.8

28 {ong term Loans and Advances Includes Rs, 168,70 Milions {As at 31st March 2014 Rs. 168.70 Milions) considered
recoverable from a bank In respect of payments made towards matured forgign currency conltracts. The Company has
filed | suit which is in the heating stage. Based on similar instances and the indusiry wide representation on this
matier, the management is of the opinion that no provision iz considersd pecessary in the consolidated financlat
statements,

29 Consequent o implementation of the Companies Act 2013 and the change in the useful #e of the assels, the
depreciation charge for the year Is higher by Rs. 17.83 Millions. With respect to assets whose useful Efe has been
exhausted, as at 01st Apiil 2014 the residual value amounting to Rs.3.29 Millions (Net of Deferred Tax) has been
adjusted against the opening Surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss ender Reserves and Surptus.




30 Deferred tax lighltities {net} ' {Rs. In Hillions)
1 Forths year ended
Particulars - 3ist March 2015
1Tax effect of Items congtitut fiahilities [
1On difference between book balancs and tax balance of fixed assels ] £360.55)

Tax effect of items constittting deferred {ax 2ssets 3
{unabsorbed defieciation carred forward . §1.48
fot - : - {7.59)

Deferred tax {liabilities) / assets {net} : £316.66)

The entities in the Group has recognised deferved tax assat on unabisorbed depredation based on the Manzgément's
estimates of fulue profits consfdering the ner-cancellablo customer orders recetved by such enliSies

31 Tamings pershare

Forthe ended
y N - Particuiars 31st Mﬁl‘\ 2095
Bsasic & - E |
TProfit for the year : {Rs. In Miflions} ] 86.067
Jess : Preference dividend and tax thereon (Rs. In Milons) 1 7.82
IProfit for the year atiribuitable to the equity shargholders (Rs. In Millions) 3 78.24]
Number of Weighted average equity shares{in Mitlions) {Nos.) 1 18.89]
Par value ger share : Rs : 10.001

{Eaming Per Share ~ Basic RS

N

Diuted ,
4Prafit far the year . ! {Rs. In Milions}
Jess : Preference dividend and tax thereon ) {Rs. In Milons)
Profit for the year attributable to the equity sharchotders {Rs. In Millions)
Number of Weighted average equity shares(in Millions {Nos.)
IPar Value per share . Rs
JEarning Per Share - Diluted Rs




$2 Employse Benefit plans
Defined contribufion plan

The Group makes Provident Fund and £mployee State Inswrance Scheme contributions which are defined
cantribution plans, for quafifying employees, Under the Schemas, the entities In the Group {5 required to contribute a
spedified percentage of the pavroll costs to furd the benefiis. The Group recogrised R5.42.09 Millions for Provident
Fund contribiions: Rs.18.82 Milions for Employee State Inswance Scheme contibutions T the Consolidated
Sum!%nem&ﬁ of Profit and Loss. The conbributions payable & these plans by the Company are at rates spedified in the
r of the schemes,

fined 1

The Group offers gratuity employse benefit scheme toits employees. The fallowing table sets put the funded status of
the defined beaefif scheme and the amount recognised b the consolidated finandlal statements:

Particularg Year gnded 31st
March 2018
{R=.in Millions)

JChanges in present value of obligation during the year k
{ Present value of obligation as on 1% April 2014 | 19.61
(nterest Cost ’ 142
Cumrent Servica-Cost . 2.69
Benefits paid 3 {3.39)
Acluarial Galnf {Less) on Qbfigations . ) 3.48
Present value of cbligation as on 31% March 2018 . 30.81

IChange In Fair Value of Assets during the year
1 Falr Value of Plan Assetsas at 1% Aprif 2014 | 3.30

‘Expected relurn an plan assets {0.04)
} Centributions made 1 0.56
Benefits pald (3.39}
Adctuarial Gainf (Loss) on plan assets 0.16
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 318 March 2015 0.68

Net Asset(Lizbility) recognised in the Consolidated BAlance Shest
Present value of obligation as on 312 March 2015 j 30.81
Fair Valug of Plan Assets as at 31" March 2015 0.68
Funded Stalus Surplusf{deficit) - {30.13}
Unrecognised past Service Cost ; -
Net Asself{Liability) to be recogrised in the Consalidated Balance sheat {30.13)

[Expenses recognised during yoar .
Current Service Cost 0.68
[nterest Cost 1.42
Expacted retum on plan assels . 0.04
Actuarial Galnf (Loss) on Chligations 3.32
Expenses to be recognised in Consalidated statement of profit and loss 14.47

lActuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate . 7.82%]
Expected retum on plan assets 8.00%:
Rate of escalation In satary 7.00%,
[Aftrition rate 5.060%

. ndian Assured Lives
{Mortality rate . ’ lity {2006-08)

The Discount rate Is based on the prevailing market yields of Govemment of India Securities as at the Balance shest
date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimate of fulre satary increases considered, takes into acoount the inflation, senlority, promotion, increments
and offie relevant faclors such as supply and demand In the employment marked,

The entie fund Is {ully managed by (ifs insurance-Corporation of indla,

e P
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33 Segment Information
Primary Segment by products

The Grotyr operates-primardy T a single business segmeant of Manufacture,-Sale and Trading in Gaments

Secondary Segment by Gaographical area based on focation of customers (Rs.in Millfons}

Geographical segment 1 Yearended 31st
’ March 2015

] [Segment Revenue
Joulside India : 3,718.01]
¥vithin fndia : } 1,066.98

gment Assels 4
itside India 1 626.67{ "
ithia (ndla . 4,702.29)

~Capital expenditure ) 109.72

24 Details of leasing arrangements
1} Finance lease ubligation relating to Vehicles {Rs.in Millions}

For the year ended

Particulars { 315t March 2015

Reconcliation of minimum lease payments

"#Future minimom lease payriients for a petiod of
not later than one year

Iater than one year and not fater than five years
fater than five vears -

K.e535: Unmatured finance charges \ 1.49
{Present value of minimum lease payments payzhle 7.20
not{ater than one year 2.08
{ater than one year and notlater than five years 5.12
(ater than five years -

{ii) Operating lease anrangements

The Group has cancellable operating lease agreements for rontal buliding space, As per the fease terms 2n amount of
Rs.25.96 Millions is charged to Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. As lessor the Group realized an income of
Rs 24.15 Milliorss on properiies under lease

3§ The nofes to accounts refating to CSR expenditure should atso confain the foliowing:
{2) Gross amount required fo be spent by the company dwing the year Rs '1.43 Milfion

4b) Amount spent during the vear on: {Rs.!n Mlllions)

Particutars InCash 1Yet to be paid in ¢cash
i) Construction/acquisition-of any asset
Kii) On purposes other than {i) above




$. P. APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

36 Related party disclosure

Details of related parties

Name of Related Party

Nature of Relationship

1Key Managerial Personnel
0. Sundararajan
S.Latha

Reiative of Key Managerial Personnel
LChenduran

Melusamy

:Ashokaramam

nterprises owned by relatives of Key
Managerial Personnet

TSP Superfine-Cotton Mills Private Limited

Perumal Splining Mills Private Limited

|Enterprises owned by key Managerial
{Personnel

PoomamEnterprises Private Limited
18.P.Textites

[S.P . Litestyles

{Managing Director
Executive Director (Wife of M. P.Sundararajan)

Son of Mr.P.Sundararajan
Brother of Mr.P.Sundararajan
1Brother of Mr.P.Sundarargjan

IEnterprise over which relatives of Key Managerial
Personnel are able to exerclse significant influence.

{Enterprise over which relatives of Key Manageriat
Cersennel are able to exercise significaat influence.

rEnterpnse over which Key Managerial Personne! are
ble to exercise significant influence

Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are
able to exercise significant influence

[Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are
{able to exercise significant influence

Note:

Related party relationships are as identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors,
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§. P. APPARELS LIMITED
Notes forming pari of the cansolidated Snancial statements

37 Delails of Derivativednstruments{For Hedging)

A MIM onTorward<Contracts

During the year the -company has recognised Mark to Market gain on outstanding forward
<coniracts gmounting to Rs. 43,38 Milions.

“Forward Contracts entered into by the group and -outstanding as at 31st Marchy 2015 for
hedging currency refated risks

. {Rs. I Millions)
1 Asat 3ist March 2015
Particulars | Currency L Buvf Sell . Amount in FG.] Amount in INR.
YSELL 11.05) 71388
ESELL k 1,231 27.41]
SELL ; 4,79 480.863
IBUY - .

o

Additionat information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instsuctions for
38 Preparation of Consolidated Financia} Statements to Schedule B to the-Companies Act,
20613

4. 1 Netassets, Le., totzi assets Share of profit or Joss
4 __minus total liabilities ’ |
Narme of the entity As%of | Relln | As%eof Rs. In Millions
joonsolidated net] Millons | consolidated
1 nssets + profit or logs - E

jSubsidiary - Indian 1 ; ;

orocodite Products Pt 4td | 671% -79.98 89%)

~ JSUbsidia:y-;‘omign R : ]
S.P. Apparels UK (F) it 0.08% 0.93

o
-

Minority interest in all 4 ‘] 1
. jeubsidiaries ] -4.82% 5752 “0.47% £7.89)

38 TheLCompany has prepared its consolidated financial statements for-the first time and hence
correspanding (comparative) figures for the previous year have not been given.




